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Glossary of Terms

The Company

The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc (the ‘Company’} is an investment trust,
quoted on the London Stock Exchange, which invests predominantly in UK
securities.

Investment Objective
The Company invests in UK securities with the long term objective of achieving:

1. anincrease of the Net Asset Value per share by more than the growth in
the FTSE AN-Share Index; and

2. growth in dividends per share by more than the rate of UK inflation.

Share Capital

The Company's share capital consisted of 195,116,734 ordinary share of 25p
each at 31 March 2010. No shares were bought back during the year.

Gearing
Gearing is provided by two debentures:

-~ E100 million 11%4% 2014; and
~ £100 million 7%% 2022.

ISA Eligibility
The ordinary shares of the Company are gqualifying investments under
applicable ISA regulations.

Glossary of Terms

There is a glossary of terms on page 57 which defines some of the more
technical references used in this annual financial report,
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND PERFORMANCE STATISTICS

Performance Statistics
Terms marked ' are defined in the Glossary of Terms on page 57
“ Source: Thomson Datastream

AT AT
31 MARCH 31 MARCH %
Capital Returnt 2010 2009 CHANGE
Net asset value ("NAV') per share:
- debt at par 422.41p 326990  +29.2
- debt at market value 398.92p 293.56p +359
FTSE All-Share Index™ 2913.19 1984.17 +46.7
Share price” 396.30p 29250p +355
Discount™;
- debt at par 6.2% 10.5%
~ debt at market value 0.7% 0.4%
Gearing':
- actual gearing 24.1% 31.2%
— potential gearing 24.2% 31.2%
%
FOR THE YEAR TQ 31 MARCH 2010 2009 CHANGE
Revenue Return
Revenue return per share 19.8p 21.0p -5.7
Retail Price Index" +4.4% -0.4%
Dividends:
— first interim 4.75p 4.75p
- second interim 4.75p 4.75p
- third interim 4.75p 4.75p
- final proposed 6.35p 6.15p
20.60p 20.40p +1.0
FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2010 2009
% Y%
CHANGE CHANGE
Total Return? (capital growth with income reinvested)
NAV per share:
— debt at par +38.0 -27.8
- debt at market value +46.0 -31.5
FTSE All-Share Index™ +52.3 -29.3
Share price™ +45.7 -235
Total Expense Ratio!
- excluding performance fee 0.7% 0.5%
— including performance fee 0.7% 0.9%




Historical Record — Last 10 Years

THE EDINBURGH INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

Ordinary  Shares Per ordinary share at 31 March Discount  Actual  Potential

shareholders’ bought  Net asset  Revenue Dividend  Share (debt at  gearing  gearing
Year ended funds back value return vate price pan ratio ratio

31 March fm m p p p p % % %

2001 1,373 110 514.0 12.07 1245 475% 121 1ng 146
2002 1,202 6.0 4347 12.50 12.75 422.5 128 n 16.7
2003 €81 4.0 2786 11.05 13.15 2310 7. 19.0 29.4
2004 884 — 3620 12.26 13.15 300.5 17.0 134 126
2005" 1,003 34 4171 12.36 13.15 3298 209 103 19.9
2006 1,215 S5 5174 15,28 15,25 429.5 17.0 1.4 16.5
2007 1,205 18.4 §57.5 18.13 18.85 481.0 13.7 14.3 16.6
2008 945 17.2 4747 214 19.90 403.3 15.1 12.9 2.2
2009 641 32 327.0 21.02 20.40 292.5 10.5 31.2 Nz
2010 827 - 422.4 19.82 20.60 396.3 6.2 24 24.2

Notes: (1) 2005 numbers have been restated following the changes in the amount of eguity shareholders’ funds arising from

changes to UK GAAP

Totat Return per Ordinary Share to 31 March

FIVE  TEN

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 YEARS YEARS
NAV (debt
at par) (%) ~108 82 -40.1 +338 +162 +27.9 +120 -11.7 -278 +380 +278 09
Share
Price (%) -90 86 431 4362 +147 4353 4174 126 -235 457 4547 +158
FTSE All-Share
Index. (%) -108 -32 -298 +31.0 +156 +280 111 77 -293 4523 +41.3 +297

Source: Thamson Datastream, fidelity and invesco.

Total Returns Since Appointment of New Manager on 15 September 2008

Figures rebased to 100 at 15 September 2008.

Source: Thomson Datastream and invesco

c3
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Capital Returns Over Ten Years
Figures rebased to 100 at 31 March 2000

Comparison of Net Dividend Growth to Retail Price Index
Figures rebased to 100 at 31 March 2000

Source: AKC and Thomson Datastream.
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Analysis of Portfolio by Sector
As at 31 March 2010 and 2009

Comparison of Portfolio to FTSE All-Share Index by Sector
At 31 March 2010
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Introduction

It is now more than eighteen months since management of the Company’s investments was
transterred to Invesco Perpetual ('Invesco’) where Neil Woodford is the manager with prime
responsibility for the portiolio. At the time of transfer to Invesco | advised shareholders that

Mr Woodford's approach was 10 work to a longer time horizon than most of his competitors and

1o invest in stocks and sectors compatible with his view on future economic trends. Mr Woodford
and his colleagues at Invesco have for some time taken the stance, of which the Board continues

1o be supportive, that expectations of recovery in UK and global economies are premature and that
the most appropriate investments are defensive ones. Accordingly the Company's pertfolio consists
of companies which the Manager believes will be resilient to further economic stress and have good
potential to sustain earnings and dividends.

The UK Equity Market

Investor optimism in future trends in global economies drove equity markets higher, and the UK equity
market performed very strongly in the year to 31 March 2010, albeit the rate of growth was much
less in the secand half of the year than it was in the first. Over the year as a whole the FTSE-All Share
index {the Index’) rase by 46.7%, with particular strength seen in stocks and sectors most exposed to
potential recovery in the economic cyde.

Company Performance

Capital: The Company's defensive portfolio positioning, as at the interim stage, was a1 variance with
the market’s broad direction. Although the Company's Net Asset Value (‘NAV') achieved a good
absolute performance, increasing over the year by 35.9% {(debt at market value) and 29.2% (debt at
par) this was significantly weaker than the 46.7% growth in the benchmark Index. The Manager used
virtually alt the Company's gearing throughout the year: this added to returns in the strong market
erwironment. On the other hand year-end NAY was reduced by about 1% due to early payment of
the third interim dividend.

Income: The defensive nature of the portfolic has been reflected in a flow of dividends within the
portfolio only marginally less than in the previous year — this compares with a fall in dividends of 15%
in the same period from the constituents of the Index, as a whole.

Shareholders’ Return: The Company's share price rose during the year by 35.5%; the discount to
NAV {debt at market value) being negligible at both the beginning and end of the year under review.
Total return — combining capital growth and income — in the year to 31 March was 46% (debt at
market value} or 38% {debt at par). The equivalent return from the Index was 52.3%.

Company Dividend

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 6.35 pence per share which, if approved by
shareholders, will be paid on 30 July 2010 to shareholders on the Company’s register on 18 June
2010. if this dividend is approved by shareholders, total payments in the year to 31 March 2010 will
be 20.6 pence per share — an increase of 1% from last year. This is obviously less than the 4.4%
increase in RP! in the equivalent period, This year's payment, if endorsed, is marginally more than the
Company's net earnings per share and will involve the transfer of about £1.53 million from Revenue
Reserves. The Board believes that this transfer (which represents 4% of the total available such
reserves) is fully justifiable given its confidence in the porifolio’s future capacity for dividend payments.

VAT

I informed shareholders a year ago that following the Investment Trust movement's successful
challenge to HMRC, the Company had received repayment of VAT due from its previous manager,
Fidelity International. | also explained that similar payments were due for the periods 1990-96 and
2001-02 from Aberdeen Asset Management {successors to Edinburgh Fund Managers). | am pleased
to report that the Company has now received £363,000 in respect of the later period — this sum has
been allocated to capital and income in the same proportion as originally made. A further small
interest payment for 2001-02 remains due, as does a potentially larger sum from 1990-96,
representing both VAT and interest. It is likely to be some time until this matter is fully resoived,
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Board Composition

The Board has been unchanged now for a number of years, and whilst this stability continues 1o be
beneficial following the change in Manager, the need is recognised to plan for recruitment of fresh
blood. As regards my own position, | have agreed with colleagues that subject to shareholder
endorsement at this year’s Annual General Meeting, | shall serve one further year and retire after the
Annual Meeting in 2011, Richard Barfield, Senior Independent Director, will lead the process to
identify and recruit my successor in good time to ensure a smooth transition.

Cutlook

Since the Company's year-end on 31 March, increasing concerns about a number of economies in the
EU and elsewhere have precipitated widespread falls in global equity markets. Within the UK, the new
Government is committed to cut public spending more quickly than was earlier anticipated, with clear
implications for the domestic economy. Against this background, the Manager sees no reason to
change the positioning of his investments which he believes have the capacity to demonstrate
earnings and dividend growth, even in an adverse dimate. The Board accepts that the underlying
portfolio with its defensive stance and high stock and sector concentration may lag the Index in the
event that economic recovery is stronger than expected. On the other hand, the Company’s
investments should provide resilience in the face of weak economies, and in the long term they have
considerable potential 10 outperform.

Scott Dobbie
Chairman

20 May 2010
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MANAGER'S REPORT

Market Review

Following the turbulence that characterised the early months of 2009, the UK equity market
experienced a sustained recovery in the twelve months to 31 March 2010 and provided a total return
of 52.3% based on the FTSE All-Share index.

The abrupt turnaround in equity market performance was based on evidence that the extraordinary
measures adopted by governments and central banks had successfully arrested the downward spiral in
the global economy. The rally was given further impetus by stabilisation in the financial sector, where
balance sheet repair is an ongoing therne. As equity markets quickly embraced an expectation of rapid
and sustainable economic recovery, appetite for risk assets rebounded sharply. In this environment,
lower guality companies and those most closely aligned to the economic cycle led the UK market
higher.

Having cut interest rates to a record low of 0.5% in March of last year, the Bank of England
maintained rates at this level throughout the period under review. March of 2009 also saw the
commencement of ‘Quantitative Easing’ ("QE’) through which the central bank purchased gilts and,
to a lesser extent, corporate bonds to inject liquidity into the financial system. An initial allocation of
£150 billion was later extended to £200 billion as UK authorities sought to use all policy tools at their
disposal to support the economy.

Economic performance was weak throughout the year with the domestic economy only emerging
from recession in the final quarter of 2009. While the final three months of the year saw growth
of 0.4% compared to the previous quarter, year-on-year comparisons showed that output had
contracted by more than 3%. Manufacturing and service sector activity gradually improved, with
sterling's weakness boosting the competitiveness of British exporters. However, unemployment
remained elevated and despite the efforts of QE there were no 1angible signs of credit growth in
the economy.

Portfolio Strategy and Review

The Company’s net asset value, including reinvested dividends, rose by 46.0% during the period,
compared to a rise of 52.3% (total return) for the FTSE All-Share index. The underperformance relative
to the benchmark index was a reflection of the polarisation that has become increasingly evident in
the UK market. The companies that have led the rally have mostly been those in cyclically orientated
sectors as the market has continued to discount a strong and sustainable recovery. The Manager
retains his conviction that economic growth in the UK will disappoint consensus expeciations and
he believes that a prolonged pericd of muted growth is likely. Despite the disappointing relative
performance seen in the period, the Manager has been greatly encouraged by the operational
performance of the companies that constitute a large part of the Company's investments. These
businesses have been able to maintain profit and dividend growth and while this has yet to be fully
reflected in share price terms, the Manager is confident that this will be corrected as the economic
challenges that remain become clearer. The Manager's decision to utilise the gearing facility available
during a period of strongly rising markets was beneficial to performance. The preference for quality
growth companies, able to maintain and grow their dividends, in a period when a number of
businesses were forced to reduce or suspend their payouts, helped the Company to continue to
provide a robust level of income.

With the share prices of the Manager's favoured companies trading on valuations that in some cases
are among the lowest he has seen, there were a number of additions to existing holdings. These
included GlaxoSmithKline, Reynolds American, Capita and BAE Systems. In addition, new positions
were introduced in Morrison (W) Supermarkets and Swiss pharmaceutical group Roche.

The Manager believes that Morrison (W) Supermarkets is trading on an undemanding rating. This
holding has been added as be believes that the group’s value proposition is well suited to today’s
market environment. The company has been able to deliver robust like-for-like sales growth and an
optimisation plan has improved operating margins. The Manager believes the company remains poised
10 deliver considerable dividend growth in future years through new store openings in the south of
England, better performance from the recently acquired Co-Op stores and from further cost savings.

Much like the UK pharmaceutical businesses that form part of the portfolio, the Manager believes that
Roche is undervatued. In his view, the company has a strong diagnostics business and has a good
portfolio of on-market drugs. This includes some biologics, which are more difficult for generic
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manufacturers to replicate and this reduces the threat of patent expiries. The company has a well
regarded management team and the combination of a strong drug pipeline and a high quality
portfolio of existing drugs give the Manager confidence in the outlook for the stock.

The most notable disposals were from the ¢il and gas sector. The Manager sold positions in oil majors
BF and Royal Dutch Shell, as well as a position in the oil services group Amec. The principal rationale
for these sales was the Manager's concern that these companies may not be able to maintain dividend
payments. While the oil price has been strong in recent months, the Manager’s expectation that
economic growth globally, as well as in the UK, is likely to disappoint could lead to weakness in the
price of oil in the years ahead. This would put pressure on revenues for oil companies at a time when
they continue to face huge capital expenditure demands. As such, the Manager believes that
dividends are at risk and with other investment opportunities offering what he believes are better
valuations and greater earnings visibility, he chose 1o re-allocate these funds into other areas of the
market.

The representation in Reed Elsevier was sold, as the Manager's level of conviction in the company’s
ability to improve returns diminished during the period. The holding of Rexam was sold as
disappointing trading periormance, combined with the announcement of a rights issue, reduced
the Manager's conviction in the outiock for the company.

Outlook

The Manager believes that the UK economy continues to face a number of challenges over the
coming years. Having seen a dramatic rise in the UK's debts, he believes uncertainty about how
quickly the budget deficit can be brought under control is likely to remain an issue for the foreseeable
future. With ratings agencies watching developments in the UK very closely, the Manager believes that
markets are likely to remain concerned about the security of the UK's AAA sovereign debt rating. As a
pant of the measures to bring the fiscal situation under tontrel, the Manager anticipates wis in
government spending and public sector job losses, both of which would have negative consequences
for near-term growth prospects. The Manager believes that the legacy of the financial crisis will also
present a headwind for economic growth. The banking sector has made some progress in improving
balance sheet strength, but in the Manager's view this process has further to run. As a result, credit
growth in the UK is likely to remain slow and this is compounded by a lack of demand from the
corporate and consumer sectors which continue 1o deleverage. Against this backdrop, the Manager
expects domestic economic growth 10 be weak for an extended period as the imbalances that still
exist in the economy are slowly corrected.

In contrast to his cautious outlook for the economy, the Manager remains upbeat about the
opportunities available in selected areas of the UK market. In his view, the fundamenial strengths

of these companies have been overiooked in a largely mornenturn driven environmem and ihis has
presented the opportunity to invest in high quality businesses at very attractive levels. In the Manager's
view, this combination leaves the Company well pasiticned to achieve its investment goals gver the
medium to long-term.

Neil Woodford
Investment Manager

20 May 2010
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INVESTMENTS IN ORDER OF VALUATION

AT 31 MARCH 2010

UK listed and ordinary shares unless stated otherwise

“ Alternative Investment Market

INVESTMENT
AstraZeneca

GlaxoSmithKline
British American Tobacco
Vodafone

Reynolds American - US common stock

BG

Imperial Tobacco
Tesco

BT

National Grid

SECTOR

Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology
Pharmaceuticals & Bictechnology

Tobacco

Mobile Telecommunications
Tobacco

Cil & Gas Producers

Tobacco

Food & Drug Retailers

Fixed Line Telecommunications
Gas & Water Multiutilities

MARKET
VALUE
£'000
85,766
85,241
76,040
58,588
54,843
52,248
52,060
48,485
44,280
43,638

% OF
PORTFOLIO

84
83
7.4
5.7
54
5.1
5.1
4.8

...................................................................

Altria - US common stock
Reckitt Benckiser

BAE Systems

Rolls Royce

Capita

Centrica

Scottish & Southern Energy
International Power

Tate & Lyle

Tobacco

Household Goods
Aerospace & Defence
Aerospace & Defence
Support Services

Gas & Water Multiutilities
Electricity

Electricity

Food Producers
Electricity

33,682
33,269
31,814
28,688
26,826
23,7591
22,108
15,849
15,115
14,966

United Utilities

Roche - Swiss common stock
Amlin

Severn Trent

Morrisson (W) Supermarkets
Provident Financial

Sage

Pennon

Hiscox
Northumbrian Water

Gas & Water Multiutilities

Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology

Non-life Insurance

Gas & Water Multiutilities
Food & Drug Retailers
General Financial

Software & Computer Services
Gas & Water Multiutilities
Non-life Insurance

Gas & Water Multiutilities

13,582
13,503
10,613
10,562
10,413
10,011

9,455

8,944
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MARKET
VALUE % OF
INVESTMENT SECTOR £'000 PORTFCOUO
Bunzl Support Services 8172 08
Yell Media 8,164 0.8
Catlin Non-life Insurance 8,054 0.8
Raven Russia*™ - preference Real Estate 4226 ‘
— ordinary 2,842
- walfanis 860
- 7,925 08
Homeserve Support Services ' 7,568 0.8
Barclays Bank — Nuclear Power Notes s
28 February 2019 Electricity 5,134 05
BTG Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology 4,414 04
Stobant industrial Transportation 3,298 0.2
Mecom Media 2,642 0.3
Climate Exchange™ Financial Services 2,338 0.2
Forty Top Holdings o 1014697 993
Burford Capital™ " Equity Ivestment Instruments 19 02
Proximagen Neuroscience* Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology 1,890 0.2
Paypoint ' Support Services 1,490 0.2
Helphire Financial Services 1,376 0.1
Eurovestech™ Financtal Services 342 0.0
ENI Lasmo Qil & Gas Producers 126 0.0
'Té;t.al H-ol.dir;glsl e SRR ER R R | . 1021857 e 1000

{1) Contingent Value Rights ('CVRs’) referred to as Nuclear Power Notes {'NPNs’) were offered by EDF
as a partial cash alternative to its cash bid for British Energy ('BE"). The NPNs were issued by
Barclays Bank. The CVRs parlicipate in BE's existing business.




12 DIRECTORS

Scott Dobbie®

Scott Dobbie CBE was
appointed to the Board

in 1998 and became
Chairman in 2003. He
joined Wood Mackenzie &
Co. in 1971 and has worked
since then with this and
SUCCEsSOr companies,
remaining a Senior Advisor to Deutsche Bank.

He is the Chairman of Standard Life European
Private Equity Trust and is a Director of the
Qualifications and Curriculum Authority.

Jim Pettigrew?

Jim Pettigrew was appointed
to the Board on 27 Qctober
2005 and is Chairman of the
Audit Committee, He is a
Chartered Accountant and
he is alsg a member of the
Association of Corporate
Treasurers. Following a
number of finance function positions in Scotland
and in London induding Group Treasurer of
Sedgwick Group plc, he was Group Finance Director,
ICAP plc, a FTSE 100 company and the world's
largest specialist inter-dealer broker from January
1999 to June 2006. He was Chief Operating and
Financial Officer of Ashmore Group plc from 2006
to 2007 and was Chief Executive Officer of CMC
Markets plc from 2007 to 2009. Heis a
Non-Executive Director of Hermes Fund Managers
Limited, Royal Bank of Canada Europe Limited and
Aberdeen Asset Management plc.,

Richard Barfield?

Richard Barfield was
appointed to the Board

in August 2001 and is
Senior Independent Director,
He was previously Chief
Investrment Manager at
Standard Life. He is
Chairman of The Baillie
Gifford Japan Trust and is a Director of The
Merchants Trust, The JPMorgan Fleming Overseas
investment Trust and the Standard Life Property
Income Trust, He is 3 member of the Board of the
Pension Protection Fund and a Director of Coal Staff
Superannuation Scheme Trustees Limited.

(1) Member of the Management Engagement and
Nomination Committees.

(2} Member of the Audit, Management
Engagement ard Nomination Committees.

Nicola Ralston?

Nicola Ralston was
appointed to the Board

in 2003. She started her
financial career in 1977
maoving to Schroders in
1979. During her time with
the Schroder Group, Nicola
undertook a variety of
analytical, fund managernent and business
management roles before becoming Head of
investment Management for the Schroder Group
in 1999, After leaving Schroders in 2001, Nicola
worked with a management consulting firm and
was & Director of several hedge funds. from 2005
to 2006 she was Head of Global Consulting at
Hewitt and from 2007 to 2008 she was a Director
of Liability Solutions, a hedge fund marketing and
consulting firm. Nicola is currently a Director and
Co-Founder of PiRho Investment Consuiting and is
a member of the FTSE Policy Committee.

William Samuel?
William Samuel was
appointed to the Board in
2003. He is currently a vice
chairman of Lazard in
London having formerly
been Vice Chairman of
European investment
Banking at Citigroup,
chairman of HP Buimer Hoidings and Group
Managing Director - Investment Bank at
Schroders and a director of Schroders PLC. He is
also Chairman of Galiform and Chairman of the
Ecclesiastical Insurance Office and is Deputy
Chairman and Senior Independent Director of
Inchcape plc. He joined Schroders Investment
Management Department in 1977 having
qualified as a Chartered Accountant and was
Head of Investment Banking when Schroders sold
its investment banking business to Salomon,
Srnith, Barney, part of Citigroup in 2000.

Sir Nigel Wicks?

Sir Nigel Wicks, GCE, CVO,
CBE was appointed to the
Board in 2005. After
working for The British
Petroleum Company, Sir
Nige! joined HM Treasury in
1968. He worked for Prime
Ministers Harold Wilson,
James Callaghan and Margaret Thatcher. He has
been the United Kingdom's Executive Directot at the
International Monetary Fund and World Bank and
the Prime Minister's representative {'Sherpa'} for the
Economic Summits of the Group of Seven
industrialised Nations. From 1989 to 2000, he was
the Treasury's Second Permanent Secretary
responsible for internationat financial matters. The
Prime Minister appointed him as Chair of the
Committee on Standards in Public Life for the
period March 2001 to April 2004. He is Chairman
of Eurociear pic and a Commissioner of the Jersey
Financial Services Commission.
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Manager and Company Secretary

Invesco Asset Management Limited

30 Finsbury $quare

london EC2A 1AG

o 020 7065 4000

Company Secretarial Contact; Carolyn Ladd

Registered Office

Quartermile Cne
15 Lauriston Place
Edinburgh EH3 9EP

Company Number

Registered in Scotland.
Number: SC1836

Invesco Perpetual Investor Services

Invesco Perpetual has an Investor Services Team,
available to assist you from 8.30 am to 6 pm
every working day. Please feel free to take
advantage of their expertise.

© 0800 085 8677

www invescoperpetual.co.ukfinvestmenttrusts

Custodian

The Bank of New York Mellon
160 Queen Victoria Street
London EC4V ALA

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc
Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh EH1 2EG

Broker

Collins Stewan Eurgpe Limited
88 Wood Street

London EC2V 7QR

Registrars

Current Registrars — up to 8 August 2010
Equiniti Limited

Aspect House

Lancing

Waest Sussex

BNS 6DA

If you hold your shares direct and not through a
savings scheme of ISA and have gueries relating
to your shareholding, you should contact the
Registrars ® 0871 384 2411

Calls cost 8p per minute plus network charges.

Shareholders can also access their holding details
vig Equinitis website wwwi shareview.co.uk.

New Registrars

From 9 August 2010, Capita Registrars will be
the Campany’s Registrars.

Capita Registrars
Norhern House
Woodsome Park

Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield

West Yorkshire HDS OLA

if you hold your shares direct and not through a
Savings Scheme or ISA and have queries relating
to your shareholding, from 9 August 2010 you
should contact the new Registrars on:

= 0B7) 664 D300.

Calls cost 10p per minute plus network charges.
Lines are open fromn 8.3C am to 5.30 pm every
working day. :

Shareholders can also access their holding details
via Capita’s website www.capitaregistrars.com or
www. capitashareportal.com.,

Capita Reqistrars provide an on-line and
telephone share dealing service to existing
shareholders who are not seeking advice on
buying or selling. This service is available at
www. Capitadeal.com or

™ (0871 664 0454.

Calls cost 10p per minute plus network charges.
Lines are open trom 8 am to 4.30 pm every
working day.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

The shares of The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc
are quoted on the London Stock Exchange.

Savings Plan and 15A

The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc is a member
of the Invesco Perpetual Investment Trust

Serigs 1: Savings and Investment Plan and the
Invesco Perpetual Investment Trust Series 1: ISA.
Shares in this Company can be purchased and
sold via these two schemes.

Invesco Perpetual Investment Trust Series 1:
Savings and investment Plan

The Invesco Perpetual Investment Trust Series 1:
Savings and Investment Plan allows an investor
to make moenthly purchases from as little as £20
per month or through lump sum investments of
£500 or above in the shares of The Edinburgh
Investment Trust plc in a straightforward and low
cost way.

Invesco Perpetual Investment Trust Series 1:
1SA

The Invesco Perpetual Investment Trust Series 1:
ISA allows investments up to £10,200 in shares
of The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc in each tax
year. Investors can also choose to make fump
sum investments from £500, or regular
investments from as little as £20 per month.

For full details of these Invesco Perpetual
investment schemes please contacl invesco
Perpetual’s Investor Services Team free on
o 0800 OB5 8677.

NAV Publication

The net asset value of the Company's ordinary
shares ("NAV'} is calculated by the Manager on a
daily basis and is notified to the Stock Exchange
on the next business day. !t is published daily in
the newspapers detailed below.

Share Price Listings

The price of your shares can be found in the
following places:

Financial Times Investment Companies
Daily Telegraph Investment Trusts
The Times Investment Companies
The Scotsman  Equity Inv instruments
Reuters
ordinary shares EDIN.L
Bloomberg
ordinary shares EDIN LN

Internet addresses
TrustNet  www.trustnet.com
interactive Investor www.iii.co.uk
Invesco Perpetual  www.invescoperpetual.co.uk/
investmentirusts
Assodation of www.theaic.co.uk
Investment
Companies

Financial Calendar
In addition, the Company publishes information
according to the following calendar:
Announcements
Half-yearly unaudited results
Interim Management

November

Statements July and January

Final results May/lune
Ordinary Share Dividends

15t interim payable November

2nd interim payable February

3rd interim payable May

{payment was brought forward
this year to 31 March 2010)

Final payable July

Debenture Stock
11%% 2014 - interest

payable June and December

7%% 2022 - interest

payable September and March
AGM July
Year End 31 March

Location of AGM

The ong hundred and twenty first Annual
General Meeting of the Company will be held at
the Weston Link, National Galleries of Scotland,
Princes Street, Edinburgh on 23 July 2010 at
10.30 am.

The investment manager, Neil Woodford, will be
making a presentation about the Company after
the AGM.




THE EDINEURGH INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (INCORPORATING THE BUSINESS REVIEW)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Introduction

The Cirectors present their report together with the audited financial statements of The Edinburgh
investment Trust plc {the 'Company") for the year ended 31 March 2010. The Corporate Governance
Statement forms part of this report.

*The Report of the Directors incorporates the Business Review and expands on the following main areas:

page 15 Nature of the Company

page 15  Objective and Investment Policy

page 16 Company Business, Results and Share Capital
page 16 Share Valuations

page 17 Key Performance Indicators

page 18 invesco Perpetual’s Investment Process and Performance
page 18  Principal Risks and Uncertainties

page 20 Resources, Relationships and Advisers

page 21 Financial Position

page 21 Sodal and Environmental Policies

page 22 Substantial Holdings in the Company

page 22  Special Business at the Annual General Meeting
page 23 The Manager

page 23 Directors

page 27 Corporate Governance Statement

Nature of the Company
The Company was incorporated and registered in Scotland as a public limited company on 1 March
1889, registered number SC1836.

The Company is an investmenl company as defined by section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and
operates as an investment trust in accordance with section 842 of the Income and Carporation Taxes
Act 1988 ('ICTA 1988"). HM Revenue & Customs have approved the Company’s status as an
investment trust, subject 1o there being no subsequent enquiry under Corporation Tax Seif
Assessment, in respect of the year ended 31 March 2009. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has subsequently conducted its affairs so as to enable it to maintain such approval. it is the
Company’s intention te continue to seek authorisation under section 842 of ICTA 1988 or under the
subsequent legislation of $1158 of the Corporation tax Act 2010.

Objective and Investment Policy
The Carmpany invests primarily in UK securities with the long term objective of achieving:

1. anincrease of the Net Asset Value per share by more than the growth in the FTSE All-Share
Index; and

2. growth in dividends per share by more than the rate of UK inflation.

The Company will generally invest only in companies quoted on a recognised stock exchange in the
UK or in those which are about to enter the FTSE All-Share Index. The Company may invest up 10
15% of the market value of the Company's investment portiolio, measured at the time of any
acquisition, in securities listed on stock exchanges outside the UK. The portfolio is selected by the
Manager on the basis of its assessment of the fundamental value available in individual securities.
Whilst the Company’s overall exposure to individual securities is monitored carefully by the Board, the
portfolio is not primarily structured on the basis of industry weightings. The securities of no one
company may, as determined at the time of acquisition, represent more than 10% of the market value
of the Company’s equity portfolio. Similarly, the Company will not hold more than 5% of the issued
share capital {or voting shares) in any one company. nvestment in convertibles is subject 10 normal
security limits. Should these or any other limit be exceeded by subsequent market movement, each
resulting position is specifically reviewed by the Board.

The Company borrows money 10 provide gearing to the equity portfolio up to 2 maximum of £200 million,

Use of derivative instruments is permitted within the following constraints and is monitored carefully
by the Board. The writing of covered calls, to a maximum of 10% of the value of the portfolio, is
permitted and a maximum of 15% may be invested in FTSE 100 futures. Other derivative contracts
may be employed subject 1o an aggregate of the above limits and to the prior approval of the Board.
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continued

Company Business

A review of the Company's business is provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Manager's Report.
The Board does not at present envisage any significant change in the business of the Company. No
important events effecting the Company have occurred since the end of its financial year,

Issued Share Capital and Rights Attaching to the Company's shares

At the year end, the Company's issued share capita! consisted of 195,116,734 ordinary shares of
25p each. During the year, no shares were repurchased.

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, any share in the Company may be issued with such
rights or restrictions, whether in regard 10 dividend, voting, return of capital or otherwise as the
Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution determine (or, in the absence of any such
determination, as the Directors may determine).

At a general meeting of the Company every shareholder has one vote on a show of hands and on a poll
one vote for each share held. The notice of general meeting specifies deadlines for exerdising voting
rights either by proxy or present in person in relation to resolutions to be passed at a general meeting.

It any shareholder has been duly served with a notice pursuant to section 793 of the Companies Act
2006 {(which confers the power to require information with respect to interests in voting rights) and has
failed in refation to any ordinary shares ("default shares’) to give the Company the information thereby
required within 14 days from the service of the notice, then unless the Board otherwise determine, the
mernber shall not, for so long as the default continues, be entitled {in respect of the default shares) to
attend or vote at any general meeting or on any poll. Where the default shares represent 0.25% or more
in nominal value of the issued ordinary shares (excluding any treasury shares), the Board may in their
absolute discretion by notice to such member direct any dividend or part thereof or other money which
would otherwise be payable in respect of the default shares to be retained by the Company. When such
money is finally paid 1o the shareholder, he shall not be entitled to receive interest or elect to receive
shares in lieu of dividend. The Board may also decide that no transfer in respect of any defauft shares
shall be registered (unless certain conditions are met). These restrictions cease to have effect seven days
after the receipt by the Company that the default shares have been transferred or all the information
required by the section 793 notice has been notified to the Company, whichever is earlier.

The Directors may refuse 10 register any transfer of any share which is not a fully-paid share, although
such discretion may not be exercised in a way which the Finandial Services Authority regards as
preventing dealings in the shares of the relevant class or dasses from taking place on an open or
proper basis. As at 31 March 2010, the Company's issued share capital did not include any ordinary
shares that were not fully paid. The Directors may likewise refuse to register any transfer of a share in
favour of more than four persons jointly.

The Company is not aware of any other restrictions on the transfer of shares in the Company other
than certain restrictions that may from time to time be imposed by laws and regulations (for example,
insider trading laws).

The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may result in restrictions on
the transfer of securities or voting rights.

The Company is seeking to renew the existing authority for the Directors to allot new shares and to
buy back shares at the forthcoming AGM. Additional details are given in the section on Special
Business at the AGM further on in this Report.

Revenue and Dividends
The results for the year are shown in the income statement.

Subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting, the final proposed dividend for the year ended

31 March 2010 of 6.35p (2009: 6.15p) per ordinary share will be payable on 30 July 2010 10
Shareholders on the register on 18 June 2010. This will give total dividends for the year of 20.6p per
share, a small increase of 1% on the previous year's dividend of 20.4p. Revenue returns per share in this
year were 19.8p (2009: 21.0p).

Share Valuations

On 31 March 2010 the mid-market price was 396.3p per ordinary share (2009: 292.5p). The net asset
value (debt at par} and net asset value (debt at market value) per ordinary share were 422.41p and
308.92p respectively. The comparative figures on 31 March 2009 were 326.99p and 293.56p.
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Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators (‘'KPIs'} used to determine the progress and performance of the Company
over time and which are comparable to those reported by other investment trusts are set out below,

YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2010 2009
Net asset value {debt at par)® +38.0% -27.8%
Net asset value (debt at market)" +46.0% -31.5%
FISE Al-Share index™ +52.3% -29.3%
Share price® +45.7% -23.5%
Discount to NAV {debl at par)™ 6.2% 10.5%
Discount to NAV (debt at markety” 0.7% 0.4%
Revenue return per share 19.8p 21.0p

Actual gearing ratio 241% 31.2%
Potential gearing ratio 24.2% 31.2%
Total expense ratio (excluding performance fee} 0.7% 0.5%
Total expense ratio (including performance fee) 0.7% 0.9%

(1) Cakcutated in accordance with AXC guidetines
(2} Source: Thomson Datastream

All figures are calculated on a total return basis. Past performance is not a guide to future returns.

Notwithstanding that some KPIs are beyond its control, they are measures of the Company's absolute
and relative performance. The KPIs assist in managing performance and compliance and are regularly
reviewed by the Board at each meeting.

The Board also regularly reviews the performance of the Company in refation to 22 investment trusts
in the UK Growth and Income sector. As at 31 March 2010, the Company was ranked nineteenth by
NAV performance in this sector over one year and tenth over three years and five years (source:
JPMorgan Cazenove).

Expenses are reviewed at each Board meeting enabling the Board, amongst other things, to review
costs and consider any expenditure outside that of its normal operations.

The principal risks and unceriainties section incdudes descriptions of performance indicators and their
monitoring and management which are key to the business of the Company.

Performance Attribution for the Year Ended 31 March 2010

FOR YEAR
TOTAL RETURN BASIS ENDED
31 MARCH 2010
%
Net asset value total return 380
Benchmark total return 52.3
Relative performance {14.3)
Analysis of Relative Performance
Portfolio total return 34.2
Less Benchmark total return ' 52.3
Portfolio performance (18.1)
Debenture borowings:
Net gearing effect 7.3
interest (2.6)
Base management fees {0.6)
Refund of VAT 0
Other expenses and tax 0.2)
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The capital net asset value used below is the capital net asset value at par, less proposed dividends.

FOR YEAR
CAPITAL RETURN BASIS ENDED
31 MARCH 2010
Y%
Net asset value capital return 316
Benchmark capital return 46.7
Relative performance (15.1)
Performance attribution - analyses the Company’s performance relative to its
benchrmark.
Portfolio {underffoutperformance  — measures the relative effect of the Company’s investrnent
portfolio against that of its benchmark. _
Net gearing effect — measures the impact of the debenture stocks and cash on the
Company's relative performance.
interest - arising from the debenture stocks reduces the assets available
to invest, resulling in a negative impact on performance.
Management fees - including both the base fee and any performance fee, reduce
the Company net assets and decrease performance.
Refund of VAT - on managernent fees, thereon, will add to net assets and thus
performance.
Other expenses and tax — reduce the level of assets and therefore result in a negative

effect for relative performance.

Invesco Perpetual’s Investment Process and Performance

At the core of Invesco Perpetual’s investment philosophy is a belief in active investment management.
fundamental principles drive a genuinely unconstrained investment approach, which aims to deliver
attractive total returns over the long term. These fundamental principles place an emphasis on sound
balance sheets, good cash flows, the ability to pay and sustain dividends, strong asset bases and
market conditions. The investment manager and the UK Equities team employ a pragmatic,
valuation-crientated approach that allows investment freedom, such that the investment manager
can select stacks free from the constraint of the weighting within the benchmark. The investment
manager’s focus is on absolute rather than relative returns, as he chooses to 1ake a long term view

in the companies he invests in and to invest where he sees value and opportunity.

The aim of the investment process is to identify companies whose outlook or growth prospects are
not reflected in their valuations. To identify these companies the investment manager combines
bottom-up research with a top-down macro-econormic view. Stocks are then subjected to detailed
fundamental analysis augmented by a qualitative assessment of the company. The output from this
analysis is then used to construct and review the portfolio with the aim of maximising exposure 1o
the most attractive opportunities within its risk parameters,

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Company's key long-term investment objectives are an increase in the capital net asset value per
share by more than the growth in the FTSE All-Share Index (the "benchmark * or ‘index’) and growth in
dividends by more than the RPI. The principal risks and uncertainties of the Company are an integral
consideration when assessing the operations in place to monitor these abjectives, including the
performance of the portfolio, share price and dividends. The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk
control systems but the day to day operation and monitoring is delegated to the Manager.

Market Risk

The uncertainty over future equity market price movements is an inherent part of the rationale for the
Company's existence. The Company’s assets principally consist of quoted securities. The prices of these
securities and the income derived from them are influenced by many factors such as general economic
conditions, interest rates, inflation, political events, and government policies as well as by supply and
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demand reflecting investor sentiment. Such factors are outside the control of the Board and Manager
and may give rise to high levels of volatility in the prices of investments held by the Company. The
asset value and price of the Company's shares and its earnings and dividends may consequently also
experience volatility and may dedline.

Investment Performance Risk

The Board sets performance objectives and it delegates the investment management process to the
Manager. The achievement of the Company’s performance objectives relative to the market requires
active managernent of the portfolio of assets and securities. The Manager's approach is to construct
a portfolio which is compatible with the Manager's view of future trends in the UK and global
economies, The Manager is a Jong term investor, prepared to take substantial positions in securities
and sectors which may well be out of fashion, but which the Manager believes will have potentia! for
material increases in earnings and, in due course, dividends and share prices. Strategy, asset allocation
and stock selection decisions by the Manager can lead to underperformance of the benchmark index
and/or income targets. The Manager's style may result in a concentrated portfolio with significant
overweight or underweight positions in individual stocks or sectors compared to the index and
consequently the Company's performance may deviate significantly, possibly for extended periods,
from that of the benchmark index. However the Board and Manager believe that the investment
process and policy outlined above should, over the long term, meet the Company's objectives of
capital growth in excess of the benchmark index and real dividend growth.

Investment selection is delegated to the Manager. The Manager manages the portfolio and the Board
does not specify asset allocations. Information on the Company’s performance against the benchmark
and peer group is provided to the Board on a quarterly basis. The Manager is responsible for
rmonitoring the portfolio selected and seeks to ensure that individual stocks meet an acceptable
risk-reward profile. A review of performance risk and how it relates 10 the Company’s objectives

is undertaken annually.

Gearing Risk

The Company has the ability to invest up to £200 million from its Debenture Stocks in the equity
market, The principal gearing risk is that the level of gearing may have an adverse impact on
performance. Secondary risks relate to whether the cost of gearing is too high and whether the length
of gearing is appropriate. The Manager has full discretion over the amount of cash from the
Company’s Debenture Stocks to be invested in the equity market whilst the issuance, repurchase or
restructuring of debt are for the Board to decide. Information related to gearing is provided to the
Directors as part of the Board papers. The Board regularly reviews the level of gearing. Additionally,
the Board keeps under review the cost of buying back debt.

Intome/Dividend Risk
The Company is subject to the risk that income generation from its investments fails to reach the level
of income required to meet its objectives.

The Board monitors this risk through the review of detailed income forecasts and comparison against
budget. These are contained within the Board papers. The Board considers the level of income at each
meeting.

Share Price Risk

There is a risk that the Company’s prospects and NAV may not be fully reflected in the share price
from time to time.

The share price is monitored on a daily basis. The Board is empowered to repurchase shares within
agreed parameters. The discount at which the shares trade to NAV can be influenced by share
repurchases. The Company has not repurchased shares in the last year.

Control Systems Risk
The Board delegates a number of specific risk control activities to the Manager including:

. best practice standards in fund management operations;

. financial controls;
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. meeting regulatory requirements;

. the management of the relationship with the Custodian in respect of the custody and security
of the Company’s assets; and

. the management of the relationship with the Registrar.

Consenuently in respect of these activities the Company is dependent on the Manager’s control
systems and those of its Custodian and Registrars, both of which are monitored by the Manager in
the context of safequarding the Company’s assets and interests. There is a risk that the Manager fails
to ensure that these controls are performed in a satisfactory manner,

A risk-based programme of internal audhts is carried out by the Manager regularly to test the controls
environment. An interna! controls report providing an assessment of these risks is prepared by the
Manager and considered by the Audit Committee, and is formally reported to and considered by the
Board.

Other Risks

The Company may be exposed to other business and strategic risks in the future, induding fiscal, legal
or regulatory changes, and the perceived impact of the designated Investment Manager ceasing to be
involved with the Company.

The instruments in which the Company's cash positions are invested are reviewed by the Board to
ensure liquidity and concentration risks are adequately managed. Where an Invesco Group vehide is
utilised, it is assessed for suitability against other similar investment options.

The Company is subject to laws and regulations by virtue of its status as an investment trust and is
required 1o comply with certain regulatory requirements that are applicable to listed dosed-ended
investment companies, The Company is subjed to the continuing obligations imposed by the UK
Listing Authority on all companies whose shares are listed on the Official List. A breach of section 842
of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 ('s842 ICTA") could lead to the Company being subject
10 capital gains tax on the sale of the investments in the Company's portfalio. A serious breach of
other regulatory rules may lead to suspension from listing on the Stock Exchange or a qualified Audit
Report.

The Manager reviews the level of compliance with s842 ICTA and other financial and regulatory
requirements on a daily basis.

There is an ongoing process for the Board to consider these other risks. in addition, the composition
of the Board is regularly reviewed 1o ensure the membership offers sufficient knowledge and
experience 1o assess and anticipate these risks, as far as possible,

Main trends and factors likely to affect the future development, performance and
position of the Company’s business

As the Company is an investrnent trust, details of the main trends and factors likely 10 affect the
future development, performance and position of the Company’s business can be found in the
Investment Manager's Report on pages 8 and 9. Further details as to the risks affecting the Company
are set out under ‘Principal Risks and Uncertainties’.

Resources

The Company is an investrment trust and has no employees. All the Directors are non-executive.
However, through the contractual arrangements in place, a full range of services is available to the
Company. The most significant contract is the Investment Management Agreement (IMA) with the
Manager, Invesco Asset Management Limited, to whom responsibility for the management of the
portiolio is delegated. The Board reviews the performance of the Manager at every Board meeting.

The day-to-day management of the portfolic is the responsibility of Neil Woodford, Head of
Investment at Invesco Perpetual based in Henley-on-Thames. Neil has worked in equity markets since
1981, joining Perpetual in 1988 and has been the Fund Manager of the Company since September
2008, when Invesco Asset Managemnent Limited were appointed as Manager of the Company.

The Board has adopted guidelines within which the Manager is permitted wide discretion; any
proposed variations outside these parameters are referred to the Board. The Board has the power to
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replace the Manager and reviews the management contract formally once a year. The outcome of this
review is discussed on page 23.

Other contractual arrangements govern relationships with the Auditors, Registrar, Custodian and
Broker. The performance of the service providers is reviewed formally by the Board on an annual basis.

Relationships

Through the annual and half-yearly financial reports, interim management statements and the
publication of a daily net asset value, the Board endeavours 10 ensure that shareholders understand
the Company’s investment objectives and policies. The Board monitors and reviews shareholder
communications on a regular basis and, both independently and through the Manager, reviews the
Company's objectives and policies in the light of feedback from shareholders.

The Company’s main supplier of services is the Manager which provides both investment management
services and company secretarial and adminisirative support.

Advisers and Principal Service Providers .
The Company has the following additional advisers and principal service providers:
. KPMG Audit Pic as Auditors;

. The Bank of New York Mellon as Custodian;

. Equiniti Limited as Registrar; and

. Collins Stewart Europe Limited as Broker.

Captla Registrars will be Registrar to the Company with effect from 9 August 2010.

Financial Position
Assets and Liabilities

At 31 March 2010, the Company’s gross assets were valued at £1,026 million (2009: £840 million).
These comprised a portfolio of mainly equity investments and net current assets.

The Company has £200 million of borrowings in the form of twoe £100 million debentures. The 11%%
debenture matures in 2014 and the 7%% debenture in 2022, The weighted average interest rate is
9.625%. For details see note 12. The Company also has a bank overdraft facility of 10% of assets
held by the Custodian which was undrawn at 31 March 2010; this facility was unused during the year
and is available to facilitate settlement of short-term cash timing differences.

Due 10 the readily realisable nature of the Company's assets, cash flow does not have the same
significance as for an industrial or commercial company. The Company’ principal cash flows arise from
the purchase and sales of investments and the income from investments against which must be set
the costs of borrowing and management expenses.

Social and Environmental Policies

As an investment trust with no employees, property or activities outside investment management,
environmental policy has limited application.

The Manager considers various factors when evaluating potential investments. Some are financial
ratios and measures, such as free cash flow, earnings per share and price-to-book value. Others are
more subjective indicators which rely on first hand research; for example quality of management,
innovation and product strength.

The Company’s policy is that, subject 10 an overriding requirement to pursue the best financial
interests of the Company, the Manager should take account of social, environmental and ethical
factors in making and holding investrnents and in the use of voting powers ¢conferred by such
investments.

At the AGM in 2008, shareholders adopted revised Articles of Association which allow the Company
to send or supply documents or information to shareholders in electronic forms (e.g. by email} or by
means of a website. This will deliver environmental benefits through reduced use of paper and the
energy required for its production and distribution.
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Substantial Holdings in the Company

At 30 April 2010, the Company had been notified of the following holdings of 3% and over of the
Company's share capital carrying unrestricted voting rights:

HOLDING %
Brewin Dolphin, Stockbrokers 12,264,801 6.3
AAM retail plans 10,029,371 5.1
AXA Investment Managers 8,216,379 4.2
Charles Stanley, Stockbrokers 8,095,259 4.2
Rathbones 7,997,935 a1
Legal & General Investment Management 7.774,067 4.0
Rensburg Sheppards Investment Managernent 7,623,976 39

Special Business at the Annual General Meeting

The notice of the Annual Genera) Meeting ('AGM’) of the Company to be held on 23 July 2070 at
10.30 am is on pages 53 to 56. In addition to the ordinary business, four resclutions are proposed as
special business, one as an ordinary resolution and three as special resolutions.

Ordinary Resolution 9 and Special Resolution 10; Authority to Allot Shares

Resolution 9 is an Ordinary Resolution to seek authority for the Directors’ to allot up 1o 10% of the
issued ordinary share capital, this being an aggregate nominal amount of £4,877,918 as at 28 May
2010. Resolution 10 is a Special Resolution which seeks autharity to issue up to 10% of the issued
ordinary shara capital pursuant to a rights issue or otherwise than in connection with a rights issue,
dis-applying pre-emption rights. This will allow shares to be issued to new shareholders, within the
prescribed limits, without having to be offered to existing shareholders first, thus broadening the
shareholder base of the Company. The Directors will not use the authority to dilute the interests of
existing shareholders by issuing shares at a price which is less than the Net Asset Value of the existing
shares in issue at that time. These autherities will expire at the next AGM of the Company or fifteen
months after the passing of the resalutions, whichever is the earlier.

Spedal Resolution 11: Authority to Buy Back Shares

Resolution 11 seeks to renew the Directors’ authority to purchase up to 14.99% of the Company’s
issued share capital, this being 29,247,998 ordinary shares as at 28 May 2010. The authority will
expire at the Company’s next AGM or on 20 January 2012, if earlier. The principal purpose of share
buy backs is to enhance the net asset value for remaining shareholders and purchases will only be
made if they enhance the net asset value for the remaining shareholders.

In accordance with the Finandal Services Authority UX Listing Rules, the maximum price which can be
paid is 5% above the average of the middle market values of the ordinary shares for the five business
days before the purchase is made. The minimum price which may be paid will be 25p per share, this
being the nominal value of a share. In making purchases, the Company will deal only with member
firms of the London Stock Exchange.

The Company will finance the purchase of ordinary shares by using its existing cash balance or by
selling securities in the Company's portiolio.

The Directors might consider holding repurchased shares as treasury shares with a view to possible
resale.

Special Resolution 12: Notice Period for General Meetings

The EU Shareholder Rights Directive, which was implemented in 2009, increased the notice period for
general meetings of companies to 21 days unless certain conditions are met in which case it may be
14 days’ notice, A shareholders’ resolution is required to ensure that the Company’s general meetings
{other than Annual General Meetings) may be held on 14 days' notice. Accordingly, Special
Resolution 12 will propose that the period of notice for general meetings of the Company (other than
AGMs) shall be not less than 14 days’ notice.

The Directors recommend that shareholders vote in favour of all the resolutions.
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Investment Management Agreement ('IMA’)

invesco Asset Management Limited (JAML) acts as Manager and Secretary to the Company under an
investment management agreement dated 15 September 2008. The agreement is terminable by either
party by giving not less than 3 months’ notice.

The management fee is payable monthly in arrears and is equal to 0.05% of the market
capitalisation of the Company’s ordinary shares at each month end.

IAML is also entitled to a performance fee in respect of each rolling three year period in which the
Company outperforms its benchmark, the FTSE All-Share Index, plus a hurdle rate, this being the
equivalent of 1.25% per annum, as adjusted for shorter periods. The IMA provides for transitional
arrangements for the periods up 1o 31 March 2011, under which half of any performance fee for
each period is paid at the end of the period and hatf deferred. Any deferred portion becomes
payable after 31 March 2011 if and when performance meets or exceeds the benchmark plus hurdle
rate.

Any performance fee earned will be the lower of 15% of the out-performance based on the average
quarterly net asset value (with debt at par) of the Company cver the relevant performance period and
1% of net asset value, as adjusted for shorter periods where required.

No performance fee is due for the year ended 31 March 2010.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, a performance fee of £3,422,000 was charged of which half is
paid and the remainder is shown as a provision in accordance with the transitional arrangements as
detailed above.

VAT on Management fees

As previously reported, management fees are no longer subject to VAT. The Company received a
refund of VAT paid on Management fees from Aberdeen Asset Management {who acquired
Edinburgh Fund Managers) of £963,000 which has been recognised in these accounts. The Board
expects the Company to receive interest on the refund of VAT, however, as the amount involved and
timing of receipt is uncertain, no provision has been made for this amount in these accounts.

The Manager’s Responsibilities

The Directors have delegated to Invesco Asset Management Limited (the ‘Manager’) the responsibility
for the day-to-day investment management activities of the Company. The Manager has full discretion
to manage lhe assets of the Company in accordance with the Company’s stated objectives and
policies. The Manager has discretion to make purchases and sales, make and withdraw cash deposits,
enter into underwriting commitments and exercise all rights over the investment portfolio. The
tManager also advises on borrowings.

The Manager provides full administration and company secretarial services to the Company, ensuring
that the Company complies with all lega! and regulatory requirements and officiating at Board
meetings and shareholders’ meetings. The Manager additionally maintains complete and accurate
records of the Company's investment transactions and portfolio and all monetary transactions from
which the Manager prepares half-yearly and annual financial staternents on behalf of the Company
as well as interim management statements,

Assessment of the Investment Manager

The Management £ngagement Committee meets annually to review the investment management and
secretarial arrangements. The Committee considers, among other matters investment performance,
marketing activity, secretarial and administrative services, the finance and control environments,
compliance, audit and terms of the Investment Management Agreement.

The Board, based on its recent review of activities, considers that the continuing appointment of
Invesco Asset Management Limited is in the best interests of shareholders as a whole.

Directors

Directors are appointed by ordinary resolution at a general meeting of ordinary shareholders. The
Directors have the power to appoint a Direclor during the year but any person so appointed must

stand for election at the next Annual General Meeting.
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Subject to its Articles of Association and relevant statutory law and to such direction as may be given
by the Company in general meeting by spedial resolution, the business of the Company shall be
managed by the Directors, who may exercise all powers of the Company which are not required to
be exercised by the Company in general meeting.

The present members of the Board, al of whom served throughout the year, are listed on page 12
together with their biographies. In accordance with the Board's tenure policy set out in the Corporate
Governance Stalement on page 27, Scott Dobbie, having served on the Board for more than 9 years,
will retife at this year’s AGM and will offer himself for re-election,

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, at every AGM, one third of the Directors
shall retire by rotation and no Director shall hold office for more than three consecutive years without
retiring by rotation. Nicola Ralston and Sir Nigel Wicks will therefore retire by rotation and offer
thernselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The following table sets out the number of scheduled Directors’ meetings (including committees) held
during the year and the number of meetings attended by each Director:

MANAGEMENT
AUDIT ENGAGEMENT NOMINATION
BOARD COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
MEETINGS MEETINGS MEETINGS MEETINGS

HELD ATTENDED HELD ATTENDED HELD ATTENDED HELD ATTENDED
Scott Dobbie!® S 5 3 na 1 1 1 ]
Jim Pettigrew 5 5 3 3 1 1 1 1
Richard Barfield 5 5 3 3 1 1 1 1
Nicola Ralston ) 5 3 3 1 1 1 1
William Samuel 5 5 3 3 1 1 1 i
Sir Nigel Wicks 5 5 3 3 1 1 1 1

(1) The Chairman is not a member of the Audit Committee but was in atiendance at the meetings,
Board members attended 3 number of non-scheduled meetings to deal with other ad hoc items.

All Directors have letters of appointrment which are available for inspection at the Registered Office of
the Company. All Directors are independent of the investment manager.

Directors’ Interests
The beneficial interests of the Direciors in the ordinary share capital of the Company are set out

below:
37" MARCH 1 APRIL
2010 2009
Scott Dobbie 214,537 133,266
Jim Pettigrew 20,000 20,000
Richard Barfield 13,984 13,984
Nicola Ralston 15,000 15,000
William Samuel 23,170 23,170
Sir Nigel Wicks 3,500 3,500

Scott Dobbie alse has a non-beneficial interest in 422,416 (2009: 422,416) ordinary shares. This
largely arises as a result of Mr Dobbie's membership of the Board of Trustees of the Cambridge
Endowment for Research in Finance.

Save as aforesaid, no Director had any interests, beneficial or otherwise, in the shares of the Company

during the year. No Director held any of the Company’s debenture stocks at either date. No changes
10 these holdings had been notified up to the date of this report.

Disclosable Interests

No Director was a parly to, or had any interests in, any contract or arrangement with the Company at
any time during the year or at the year end. The Company has entered into a Deed of Indemnity with
each Director under which the Directors are indemnified by the Company for, inter alia, costs incurred
in defending claims made by third parties.
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Conflicts of Interest

The Companies Act 2006 sets out directors’ general duties which largely codify the existing law but
with some changes. Under the 2006 Act, a director must avoid a situation where he has, or can
have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict with the company's
interests. The requirement is very broad and could apply, for example, if a director becomes a
director of another company or a trustee of another organisation. The 2006 Act allows directors

of public companies to authorise conflicts and potential conflicts, where appropriate, where the
articles of association contain a provision to this effect. The 2006 Act also allows the articles of
association 10 contain other provisions for dealing with directors’ conflicts of interest to avoid a
breach of duty.

The Articles of Association of the Company give the Directors authority to approve such situations and
to include other provisions to allow conflicts of interest to be dealt with in a sirmilar way to the current
position.

There are safeguards which will apply when Directors decide whether to authorise a conflict or
potential conflict. First, only Directors who have no interest in the matter being considered will be able
to take the relevant decision, and secondly, in taking the dedsion the Directors must act in a way they
consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote the Company's success. The Directors will be
able to impose limits or conditions when giving authorisation if they think this is appropriate.

It is the Board’s future intention 1o report annually on the Campany's procedures for ensuring that the
Board's powers of authorisation of conflicts are operated effectively and that the procedures have
been followed.

The Directors have declared any potential conflicts of interest to the Company. The Register of Potential
Conflicts of Interests is kept at the Registered Office of the Company. It is reviewed regularly by the
Board and the Directors will advise the Company Secretary as soon as they become aware of any
potential conflicts of interest. Directors who have potential conflicts of interest will not take part in any
discussions which relate 1o any of their potential conflicts.

Deeds of Indemnity
A Deed of Indemnity was executed between the Company and each Director.

Under the terms of the indemnities, a Director may be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities which the Director may sustain or incur in the
execution or purported execution or discharge of his or her duties or the exercise of his powers or
discretions as a Director of the Company. This includes any liability incurred by the Director in
disputing, defending, investigating or providing evidence in connection with any actual or threatened
or alleged claims, demands, investigations or proceedings whether civil or criminal, and any settlernent
in respect thereof. Directors will continue to be indemnified under the terms of the indemnities
notwithstanding that they may have ceased 1o be Directors of the Company.

However, Directors will not be entitled to be indemnified for any liability to the Company for fines
payable to regulalory authorities, for defending any criminal proceedings in which they are convicted or
in defending any civil proceedings brought by the Company in which judgment is given against a
Director. In these circumstances, the Director will repay to the Company any amount received from the
Company under his indemnity. The indemnity does nol apply to the extent that a liabifity is recoverable
from any insurers, if it is prohibited by the Companies Act 2006 (previously section 309A of the
Companies Act 1985 {as amended)) or otherwise prohibited by law or if a liability arises from an act or
omission of the Director which is shown to have been in bad faith or arising from gross negligence.

Audit \Information

The Directors who held office at the date of the approval of the Directors' Report confirm that, so far
as they are aware, there is no retevant audit information of which the Company’s Audiors are
unaware; and each Director has taken steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director to make
himselfherself aware of any relevant audit information and 10 establish that the Company’s Auditors
are aware of that information. This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.
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Auditors

The Audit Committee has considered the independence of the auditors and the objectivity of the
audit process and is satisfied that KPMG Audit Plc has fulfilled its obligations to shareholders as
independent auditor to the Company.

Resolutions proposing the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as the Company’s Auditors and
authorising the Directors to determine their remuneration will be put to the forthcoming AGM.

individual Savings Account ("1SA)
The ordinary shares of the Company are qualifying investments under applicable 15A regulations.

Supplier Payment Policy
It is the Company’s policy to obtain the best terms for all business, including purchases of investments,
and 10 abide by those agreed terms. The Company had no trade creditors at 31 March 2010 (2009: nil}.

Donations
The Company made no political or charitable donations during the year (2009: nil).

Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors consider this is
the appropriate basis as the Company has adequate resources 0 continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. [n considering this, the Directors took into account the diversitied portfolio of
readily reatisable securities which can be used 1o meet funding commitments, and the ability of the

Wmeet all of its liabilities and ongoing expenses from its assets.
= “For Inves co Assat ,

mept Lims 4" Somes
30 Finsbury Square Company Secretary
London EC2A 1AG

. 28 May 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Directors’ Statement of Compliance with the revised Association of Investment
Companies’ Code of Corporate Governance ("AlIC Code’) and the AIC's Corporate
Governance Guide for Investment Companies ('AlC Guide’)

The Corporate Governance Statement forms part of the Report of the Directors.

The Principles
The Board is committed to maintaining the highest standards of Corporate Gavernance and is
accountable to shareholders for the governance of the Company’s affairs,

In February 2006, the Financial Reporting Council confirmed that AIC member companies which
report against the AIC Code and which follow the AIC Guide meet their obligations in relation 1o the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance and paragraph 9.8.6 of the Listing Rules. On 20 February
2009 the FRC provided the AIC with an updated endorsement to cover the 2009 edition of the AIC
Code relating to additional items to be included in the annual financial report. This statement
describes how the principfes of the AIC Code and Guide have been complied with in the affairs of the
Company.

Any reference to the AIC Code in this statement includes references to the AIC Guide.

The Board considers that reporting against the principles and recommendations of the AIC Code, and
by reference to the AIC Guide (which incorporates the Combined Code), will provide better
information to shareholders. Copies of the AIC Code and AIC Guide can be found on the AIC's

website at www. theaic.co.uk.

The Company has complied with the recommendations of the AIC Code and the relevant provisions of
Section 1 of the Combined Code, except as set out below.

“The Combined Code includes provisions refating 1o the role of the chief executive, executive directors'
remuneration and the need for an internal audit function. For the reasons set out in the AIC Guide,
and in the preamble to the Combined Code, the Board considers these provisions are not relevant to
the Company, which is an externally managed investment company. The Company has therefore not
reported further in respect of these provisions.

Directors
independence

The Board comprises six non-executive Directors, each of whom the Board regards as wholly
independent of the Company's Manager.

Some commentators have a view that length of service on a board can compromise independence
from the manager. The AIC does not believe that this is the case for investment companies and
therefore does not recommend that long serving directors be prevented from forming part of the
independent majority. .

The Board considers that the independence of Scott Dobbie, who has served on the Board for more
than 9 years, is not compromised by his length of service. The Board believes that the Company
benefits from a balance of board members with different tenures, Scott Dobbie, having served on the
Board for more than 9 years is subject to re-election and therefore will retire at this year's AGM and
will offer himself for re-election. In considering the Chairman’s independence, it should also be noted
that the Manager, Invesco Asset Management Limited, was appointed in September 2008.

Chairman

The Chairman of the Company is Scott Dobbie, a non-executive and independent Director who has no
conflicting relationships. As the Company is an investment trust and sub-contracts its day-to-day
investment management and administration, its Board consists exclusively of non-executive Directors
and it does not have a Chief Executive Officer.

Scott Dobbie has been a member of the Board since 1998 and Chairman since 2003. He is subject to
an annual performance appraisal. Following this year's appraisal, the Board has confirmed that the
Chairman’s performance continues to be effective and therefore recommends his re-election.

The Chatrman will be present at the AGM to answer questions.

Senior Non-Executive Director
The Company's Senior Non-Executive Director is Richard Barfield.
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Board Balance

The Directors have a range of business, financial and asset management skills as well as experience
relevant 1o the direction and controi of the Company. Brief biographical details of members of the
Board are shown on page 12.

Supply of Information

To enable the Directors of the Board 1o fulfil their roles, the Manager ensures that ail Directors have
timely access 1o all relevant management, financial and regulatory information.

On being appointed to the Board, Directars are fully briefed as to their responsibilities and are
continually updated throughout their term in office on industry and regulatory matters. The Manager
and the Board have formulated a programme of induction training for newly appointed Directors.
They have also put arrangements in place to address ongoing training requirements of Directors which
include briefings from key members of the Manager's staff and which ensure that Directors can keep
up to date with new legislation and changing risks.

The Board meets on a regular basis at least four times each year. Additional meetings are arranged as
necessary. Regular contact is maintained by the Manager with the Board between formal meetings.

Board meetings follow a formal agenda, which includes a review of the investment portfolio with a
report from the Manager on the current investment position and cutlook, strategic direction,
performance against stock market indices and the Company's peer group, asset allocation, gearing
policy, cash management, revenue forecasts for the financial year, marketing and shareholder
relations, corporate governance, regulatory changes and industry and other issues.

Appointment, Re-election, Tenure and the Nomination Committee

All Directors are members of the Nomination Committee which is chaired by Scott Dobbie.

The Nomination Committee has written terms of reference which clearly define its duties and
responsibilities. These include regularly evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on
the Board and whether to recammend the re-election of those Directors seeking re-election at each
AGM 1o shareholders. The Committee is also respensible for identifying and nominating for approval
of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when they arise.

No Director has a contract of employment with the Company. Directors’ terms and conditions of
appointment are set out in letters of appointment which are available for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company. They will also be available at the AGM.

The Articles of Association require that a Director shall be subject to election at the first AGM after
appointment and re-election at least every three years thereafter. At each AGM one-third of the
Directors may, by notice in writing, remove any Director from the Board without notice or
compensation.

Board, Committee and Directors’ Performance Appraisal

The Directors recognise the importance of the AIC Code’s recommendation in respect of evaluating
the performance of the Board as a whole, the Committees and individual Directors.

During the financial year, following a tull year's experience in working with Invesco Perpetual, the
Board conducted an evaluation of the performance of the Board, the Committee and of individual
Directors. The method used was self evaluation by means of a questionnaire. The Chairman collated
these responses and produced a summary note which was discussed at a meeting of the Directors.
The senior independent director conducted a similar exercise to evaluate the Chairman's performance.

The result of the performance evaluation process was that the performance of the Board as a whole,
the Committees of the Board, the Chairman and individual Directors was deemed fully satisfactory.

Directors' Remuneration
The Board as a whole reviews Directors’ remuneration periodically. The Directors’ Remuneration Report
is se1 outl on pages 33 and 34.
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Accountability and Audit
The Directors’ responsibilities with regard to the financial staternents are set out on page 35 and the
Independent Auditers’ Repert is set out on page 36.

internal Financial and Non-Financial Controls

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the Company’s systers of internal financial
and non-financial controls {‘internal controls’) which have been in place throughout the year and up
to the date of this report in order to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company's assets.

The Board reviews, at least annually, the effectiveness of the Company's system of internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance and risk management systems. The Company's system
of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve the
Company's investment objective and/ or adhere to the Company’s investrnent policy and/or investment
lirits. This system can therefore provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of loss. The Board confirms that the necessary actions are taken 1o remedy any
significant failings or weaknesses identified from their review. There are no significant failings or
weaknesses that have occurred throughout the year ended 31 March 2010 and up to the date of this
annual financial report.

As stated above, the Board meets regularly, at feast four times a year, and reviews financial reports
and performance against approved forecasts, relevant stock market criteria and the Company’s peer
group. In addition, the Manager and Custodian maintain their own systems of internal controls and
the Board and the Audit Committee receive regular reports from the Internal Audit and Compliance
Departments of the Manager. Formal reports are also produced annually on the internal controls and
procedures in place for the operation of secretarial and administrative, custodial, investment
management and accounting activities. The programme of reviews is set up by the Manager and the
reports are not necessarily directed to the affairs of any one client of the Manager.

tnternal Audit Function

The Audit Committee has reviewed the need for the Company 1o establish an internal audit function,
but, in view of the extent of the Manager's executive responsibilities and, given that the Manager has
internal audit functions, consider that such a function is not necessary.

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Directors are equally responsible under United Kingdom law for the proper conduct of the
Company's affairs and for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising its
affairs within a framework of effective controls which enable risk to be assessed and managed. In
addition, the Directors are responsible for ensuring that their policies and operations are in the best
interest of all of the Company’s shareholders and that the best interests of creditors and suppliers to
the Company are properly considered.

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for its consideration, which clearly define the Directors’
responsibilities. This schedule was updated during the year in order to ensure best practice and
compliance with the AIC Code. The main responsibilities include: setting the Company’s objectives,
policies and standards; ensuring that the Company's obligations to shareholders and others are
understood and complied with; approving accounting poticies and dividend policy; managing the capital
structure; setting long-term objectives and strategy; reviewing investment performance; assessing risk;
approving loans and borrowing; and controlling risks. The schedule of matters reserved for decision by
the Board will be available for inspection at the AGM and is otherwise available at the Registered Office

of the Company and on the Company’s website at www.invescoperpetual.co. ukfinvestmenttrusts.

Finally, the Board ensures that shareholders are provided with sufficient information in order to
understand the risk:reward balance to which they are exposed by holding their shares, through the
portfolio details given in the half-yearly and annual financial reports, interim management statements,
facisheets and daily NAV disclosures.

The Board as a whole undenakes the responsibilities which would otherwise be assumed by a
remuneration committee, determining the Company’s remuneration policy. The Board takes into
account all factors which are deemed necessary in order to ensure that members of the Board are
provided with appropriate compensation and are, in a fair and responsible manner, rewarded for their
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individual contributions 1o the success of the Company, The remuneration of Directors is reviewed
periodically and reported on in more detail in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The Manager’s Responsibilities -

The Manager is responsible for the day-to-day investment management decisions of the Company and
for the provision of company secretarial and accounting services. A statement of the Manager’s
responsibilities is shown on page 23 in this Report of the Directors.

The Board has reviewed and accepted the Manager’s ‘whistleblowing’ policy under which staff of
Invesco Asset Management can, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties or
irreqularities in matters affecting the Company.

The Company Secretary

The Board has direct access 1o the advice and services of the Company Secretary, invesco Asset
Management Limited, which is responsible for ensuring that the Board and Committee procedures are
followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The Secretary is also responsible
to the Board for ensuring timely delivery of information and reports and that the statutory obligations
of the Company are met, Finally, the Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the
Chairman on all governance matters.

There is an agreed procedure for the Directors, in the furtherance of their duties, to take legal advice
at the Company's expense up to an initial cost of £10,000 having first consulted with the Chairman.

The Audit Committee

The Board is supported by an Audit Committee consisting of all non-executive Directors with the
exception of Scott Dobbie. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Jim Pettigrew. The Cormmittee has
written terms of reference which clearly define its responsibilities and duties. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee, including its role and authority, were updated during the year to ensure best
practice and compliance with the AIC Code. They will be available for inspection at the AGM and can
be inspected at the Registered Office of the Company or on the Manager’s website.

The Audit Committee is responsible to the Board for reviewing each aspect of the financial reporting
process, systems of internal control and the management of financial risks, the audit process,
relationships with external auditors, the Company's processes for monitoring compliance with laws
and regulations, its code of business conduct and for making recommendations to the Board.

Duties of the Audit Committee include discussing with the external Auditors the nature and scope of
the audit and reviewing the external Auditors’ quality control procedures; considering the scope of
work undertaken by the Manager's internal audit and compliance department; reviewing the
Company’s procedures for detecting fraud; monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company; reviewing the half-yearly and annual financial statements of the Company prior to their
submission to the Board; and reviewing the efectiveness of the internal control systems (including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management). They also include responsibility
for reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the audit process and the external Auditors’
independence and objectivity with particular regard to the provision of non-audit services. The
provision of non-audit services is also subject to prior Board approval. The Audit Committee of the
Board meets the external Auditors in the absence of representatives from the Manager at least once a
year to review these and other appropriate matters. shareholders have the opportunity at each Annual
General Meeting to vote on the re-appointment of the external Auditors for the forthcoming year and
1o authorise the Directors 1o determine the level of Auditors’ remuneration.

The Committee also reviews corporate governance issues, the existence and performance of all controls
operating in the Company {including compliance with 5842 ICTA), the relationship with and the
performance of third party service providers (such as the Registrars and Custodians). In the year to

31 March 2070 the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities by, among other things:

. Reviewing the Company’s draft annual and half-yearly financial reports prior 1o Board approval
and reviewing the external Auditors' reports thereon;

. Reviewing the appropriateness of the Company's accounting policies;

. Reviewing the potential impact of any new Financial Reporting Standards;
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» Reviewing and approving the audit fee and reviewing any non-audit fees payable to the
Company's external Auditors;

. Reviewing the external Auditors' terms of engagement;

. Reviewing the external Auditors’ plan for the audit of the Company’s financial statements;

. Reviewing the external Auditors’ quality control procedures;

*  Reviewing and menitoring the effectiveness of the external audit process and the external
Auditors’ independence and objectivity;

. Recormmending the re-appointment of the external Auditors to the Board;

. Review of the internal financial and non-financial controls and risk management systems with
the Manager against risk parameters approved by the Board; and

. Considering the scope of work undertaken by the Manager's internal audit and compliance
departments.

The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year in the performance of their duties, In addition,
the Audit Committee Chairman meets with the Manager on a regular basis, and from time to time
with the External Auditors.

The Audit Committee has received satisfactory reports on the Manager’s internal operations from the
Manager's Compliance and Internal Audit departmenis.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010 with
the Manager and the Auditors at the condusion of the audit process.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee will be present at the AGM to deal with questions relating 10
the accounts.

Auditors Non-Audit Services

The Company’s policy is not 10 seek substantial non-audit services from its Auditors. The Audit
Committee considers whether the skills and experience of the Auditors make them a suitable supplier
of the non-audit service and whether there are safeguards in place to ensure that there is no threat to
objectivity and independence in the conduct of the audit resulting from the provision of such services.

Apart from the normal audit-related services, during the year the Company's Auditors also provided a
review of the half-yearly financial report and a review of the Annuaf Certificate of Compliance to the
Trustee of the debenture stock. Details are set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

Relations with Shareholders

Shareholder relations are given high priority by both the Board and the Manager. The prime medium
by which the Company communicates with shareholders is through the half-yearly and annual
financial report, which aim to provide shareholders with a full understanding of the Company's
activities and their results. This information is supplemented by the daily calculation and publication

at the Stock Exchange of the net asset value of the Company’s ordinary shares and by a monthly fact
sheet produced by the Manager. At each AGM, a presentation is made by the investment manager
following the business of the Meeting and shareholders have the opportunity to communicate directly
with the whole Board.

There is a regular dialogue between the Manager and institutional shareholders to discuss aspects of
investment performance, governance and strategy and to listen to shareholder views in order to help
develop an understanding of their issues and concerns. General presentations to both institutional
sharehciders and analysts follow the publication of the annual results. All meetings between the
Manager and institutional and other shareholders are reported to the Board. During the year, the
Chairman, the Senior independent Director and the other Directors also met representatives of those
major shareholders who accepted an invitation from the Chairman to meet.

It is the intention of the Board that the annual financial report and Notice of the AGM be issued to
shareholders so as to provide at least twenty working days' notice of the AGM. Shareholders wishing
to lodge questions in advance of the AGM are invited to do so, either on the reverse of the proxy card
or otherwise in writing to the Company Secretary at the address given on page 13. At other times,
the Company responds to letters from shareholders on a range of issues.
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Shareholders can also visit the Manager's investment trust website at www invescoperpetual co uk/
investmenttrysts in order to access copies of half-yearly and annual financial reports; interim
management stalements; shareholder circulars; Company factsheets and Stock Exchange
announcements. Shareholders can also access various Company reviews and information such as
an overview of UK equities and the Company's share price. Shareholders are also able to access
copies of the schedule of matters reserved for the Board and the terms of reference of the Audit,
Management Engagement and Nomination Committees and following any shareholders™ general
meetings, proxy voting results.

Institutional Voting

The Board considers that the Company has a responsibility as a shareholder towards ensuring that
high standards of corporate governance are maintained in the companies in which it invests.

To achieve this, the Board does not seek to intervene in daily management decisions, but aims to
support high standards of governance and, where necessary, will take the initiative to ensure those
standards are met. The principal means of putting shareholder responsibility into practice is through
the exercise of voting rights. The Company's voting rights are exercised on an informed and
independent basis and are not simply passed back to the company concerned for discretionary voting
by its chairman.
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The Board presents this Report which has been prepared under the requirements of Schedule & to the
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports} Regulations 2008 and in
accordance with the Direclors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 and the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority. An ordinary resolution for the approval of this Report will be put to
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM”).

The Company’s Auditors are required to audit certain of the disclosures provided in this Report. Where

disclosures have been audited, they are indicated in this Report. The Auditors’ opinion is induded in
their Audit Report on page 36.

Remuneration

The Board has resolved that a remuneration committee is not appropriate for a company of this size
and nature. Remuneration is therefore regarded as part of the Board's responsibilities to be addressed
regularly.

- All Directors are non-executive and all participate in meetings of the Board at which Directors’
remuneration is considered. The Board seeks advice, inter alia, from the Company Secretary, Invesco
Asset Management Limited, when considering the level of Directors’ fees.

Since 1 April 2007, Directors’ remuneration has been as follows:

- Chairman £44,000 pa;
- Chairman of the Audit Committee £27,000 pa;
-~ Senior Non-Executive Director £27,500 pa; and
~ QOther Directors £24,200 pa.

Policy on Directors’ Rermuneration

The Board’s policy is that the remuneration of non-executive Directors should be fair and reasonable in
relation to that of other investrnent trusts and to the time incurred and responsibility undertaken.

fFees for the Directors are determined by the Board within the limits stated in the Company's Articles
of Association. The maximum currently dictated by the Company's Anicles of Assogiation is £250,000
in aggregate per annum. The Directors are not eligible for bonuses, pension benefits, share options or
other incentives or benefits.

it is intended that this policy will continue for the year ending 31 March 2011 and subsequent years.

Service Contracts

All Directors have letters of appointment which are available for inspection at the Registered Office
of the Company. Under the Articles of Association of the Company, the terms of the Directors’
appointment provide that a Director shall be subject to election at the first AGM after appointment
and that, at every AGM, one third of the Directors shall retire by rotation and no Director shall hold
office for more than three consecutive years without retiring by rotation. The terms of the
appointment letters alsc provide that a Director may be removed from office by notice in writing.
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The Company's Performance

The graph plots the total return net asset value and total return share price to ordinary shareholders
compared to the total return of the FTSE All-Share index over the S years to 31 March 2010. This
index is the benchmark adopted by the Company for comparison purposes, Figures have been rebased
to 100 at 31 March 2005. Graphs showing the performance over the last 10 years and since the
appointment of the present Manager are shown on pages 3 and 4.

Directors’ Emolursients for the Year (Audited)
The Directors who served during the year received the following emoluments in the form of fees:
VR Fevd

¥

44,000 44,000

Scott Dobbie (Chairman)

Jim Pettigrew (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 27,000 27,000
Richard Barfield (Senior Non-Executive Director) 27,500 27,500
Nicola Ralston 24,200 24,200
William Samuel 24,200 24,200
Sir Nigel Wicks 24,200 24,200
owl e e e L NTVI00 173,100
Approval

The Directors’ Remuneration Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 28 May 2010,

Scott Dobkie A ! ‘ :
/

Chairman
Signed an behaif of the Board of Directors




DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

IN RESPECT OF THE PREPARATION OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual financial report in accordance with applicable
law and regulations,

Company law requites the Directors 10 prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under the
law the Directors have elected to prepare financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
UK Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Gererally Accepted Accounting Practice). Under company
faw, the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state ot affairs ot the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that

period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statemens on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and

explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial

position of the Company and which enable them to ensure that the finandial statements comply with

the Companies Act 2006. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably

open 1o them to safeguand the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other

irreguiarities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’
Report, a Directors’ Remuneration Report and a Corporate Governance Statement that comply with
that law and those requlations.

In so far as each of the Directors is aware;

+  there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

. the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Directors of the Cormpany each confirm to the best of their knowledge, that:

. the financial staterments, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting
standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the
Company; and

= this annual financial report intludes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Company together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that it faces.

A W{
Scott Dobble —

Chairman
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

28 May 2010

Fwa g Porhearon
The annual financial report is published on wywy isvescoperpetual co ukfinvestmenttrysts which s the
Company’s website maintaired by the Company's Marager. The work carried out by the Auditors
does not nvolve consideration of the maintenance and integrity of this website and accordingly, the
Auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that have occurred to the financial statements since
they were imrally presented on the webste Visitors ‘o the website reed to be aware that legisiation
r the Un.ted Kirgdom governng the prepasaton and dissemiration of the frangial statements Tay
difer from "egisiation in other ursdictions




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE EDINBURGH INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

We have audited the financial statements of The Edinburgh Investment Trust for the year ended 31 March
2010 which comptise the income Staternent, the Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes, We have also audited the information in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable faw and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyene other than the
Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 35, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is 10 audit the financia! statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards cn Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's (APB's} Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the Audit of the Financal Statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB’s web-site at
www. frc org.ukfapbiscope/UKP.

Dopinisn on Financal Statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2010 and of its total
return for the year then ended;

«  have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opirion on Gther Matters Prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:

s the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repart to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006;

« the information given in the Directors” Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are Requred 1o Report by Excepticn
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required o report to you if, in Qur opinion:

«  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

o the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by faw are not made, or

»  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

tnder the Listing Rules we are reguired to review:
s the Directors’ Statement in felation to going concerr; and

s the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's compliance with the nine
provisions of une 2008 Combined Code specified for our review.

]
-

“Ealim Tharan-teeriSr Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Pic, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Edirburgh

28 \ay 2070
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INCOME STATEMENT / 37
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

2010 2009
REVENUE  CAPITAL TOTAL REVENUE  CAPRITAL TOTAL
NOTES £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 ~ £'000

Gains/{losses) on invastments ch -— 112,356 212,3%6 — {274,429} (274,429)
Foreign exchange losses - (187) {187} — {4y {4)
Income 2 459%8 — 486,958 4324 — 48241
lnvestment management fee 3 (1,224) ~ (2,855} (4,079 (954) (5,739  (6,733)
VAT recovered on management

fees 3 289 674 963 591 1.378 1,969
Other expenses 4 (697) (6} (703) (725) {58) (783)
Net return before finance

costs and taxation 45,326 209,982 2553308 47,113 (27B,852) (231,739)
Finance costs 5 (5,850) (13,652} (19,502) (5,850} (13,651} (19,501)
Return on ordinary activities -

before tax . 39,476 196,330 235806 41,263 (292,503) (251,240)
Tax on ordinary activities 6 (809) — (809 {139 —_ 134
Return on ordinary activities .

after tax for the financial year 38,667 196,330 234,997 41,129 (292,503) (251,374)
Return per ordinary share ‘
Basic 7 198p  1008p . 1204p 27.0p (1495)p (1285w

The total column of this statement represents the Company's profit and joss account, prepared in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards. The supplementary reveriue and capital columns are presented
for information purposes in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice issued by the
Association of investment Companies. All items in the above Staternent derive from continuing operations
and the Company has no other gains or losses therefore no statement of recognised gains or losses is
presented. No operations were acquired of discontinued in the year.

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

CAPITAL
SHARE SHARE  REDEMFTION CAPITAL REVENUE

CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVE RESERVE RESERVE TOTAL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2008 48,574 6,639 23,881 807,375 57,569 945,038
Dividends paid - note 8 — - — —_ (39,062)  (39,062)
Net return on ordinary activities — — — (292,503} 41,129  (251,374)
Repurchase of shares (795) —_ 795 (13,202) —_ (13,202}

Balance at 31 March 2009 48,779 6,639 24,676 501,670 59,636 641,400
Dividends paid - note 8 - — — — (49,072) {49,072

Net return on ordinary activities — — —_ 196,330 38,667 234,997

Balance at 31 March 2010 48,779 6,639 24,676 698,000 49,231 827,325

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these statements.




BALANCE SHEET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

2014 2609
MOITES £000 £ 0G
Fixed assets
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss 9a) 1,021,857 839,462
Current assets
Detstors 10 7,233 5,698
Cash and cash funds 231 5
7,464 5.703
Creditors: arnounts falling due within one year 11 (3,4'326) (5,447)
Net current assets _ 4,038 256
Total assets less current Habilities 1,025,895 839,718
Creditors: amounts failing due after more than one year 12 {196,859) {196,607)
Provision 13 {1,711) (1,711}
Net assets 827,325 641,400
Capital and reserves
Share capital 14 48,779 48,779
Share premium 15 6,639 6,639
Capital redemption reserve 15 24,676 24,676
Capital reserve 15 698,000 501,670
Revenue reserve 15 49,231 59,636
Shareholders’ funds B27,.32% 641,400

Net asset value per ordinary share
Basic 16 422.41p 326.99p

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 May 2010.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

o Avaypeeins

Chairman

The accompanying nates are an integral part of this statement.




THE EDINBURGH INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 39
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

2010 2009
NOTES £'000 £'000
Cash inflow from operating activities 17(a) 37,919 48,455
Servicing of finance 17(b} {19,250} {19,250)
Capital expenditure and financial investment 17(b) 30,816 {52,386)
Equity dividends paid 8 . (49.072) {39,062)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) before management of
liquid resources and financing 413 (62,243)
Management of liquid resources 17(b} - 52,601
Financing 17(b) — {15,793)
Increasef{decrease} in cash 413 {25,435)
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Increasef{decrease} in cash 13 {25,435)
Cashflow from movement in liquid resources — {52,601)
Exchange movements (187) 4
Debenture stock non-cash movement (252) (251
Movement in net debt in the year (26) (78,291)
Net debt at beginning of year (196,602} (118,311)
Net debt at end of year 17(c} (196,628) (196,602)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this staternent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Principal Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these finandial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied during the year and the preceding year, unless
otherwise stated.

(a

(b)

(©

Basis of preparation

Accounting Standards Applied

The financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and with the Statement of Recommended Practice ('SORP’} ‘Financial
statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture Capital Trusts’, issued by the Association
of Investment Companies in January 2009. The financial statements are also prepared on a
going concern basis. The disdosures on going concern in the Repen of the Directors on page 26
form part of the financial statements.

Foreign Currency

G)  Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in sterling, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency and the currency in which the Company’s share capital and
expenses, as well as its assets and liabilities, are denominated.

(i}  Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currency, whether of a revenue or capital naure, are translated to
sterling at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of such transactions. Foreign currency
assets and liabilities are translated to sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. Any gains or losses, whether realised or unrealised, are taken to the capital
reserve of to the revenue account, depending on whether the gain or loss is of a capital or
revenue nature. All gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

Financial Instruments

(i}  Recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company will offset
financial assets and financial liabilities if the Company has a legally anforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and intends to settle on a net basis.

{i)  Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash fiows
from the asset expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in the transierred financial asset that is
created or retained by the Company is recognised as an asset.

(i Derecognition of financial iabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when its cbligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired.

{v) Trade date accounting
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on
which the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets.

v}  Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets
The Company's investments are classified as held at fair value through profit ot loss.
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,

which is taken to be their cost, with transaction costs expensed in the incormne statement,
and are subsequently valued at fair value.
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{d)

(e)
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Principal Accounting Policies {(continued)

Financial Instruments {continued)
)  Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

Fair value for investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to stock exchange quoted bid prices at the balance sheet date.
Fair value for investmenis that are activety traded but where active stock exchange quoted
bid prices are not available is determined by reference to a variety of valuation techniques
including broker quotes and price modelling. Unquoted, unlisted or illiquid investments are
valued by the Directors at fair value using a variety of valuation techniques including
earnings multiples, recent transactions and other market indicators, cash flows and net
assets,

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair vatue, net of
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amonrtised cost using the effective
interest method.

Hedging and Derivatives

Forward currency contracts entered into for hedging purposes are valued at the appropriate
forward exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date. Profits or losses on the closure or
revaluation of positions are induded in capital reserves.

Futures contracts may be entered into for hedging purposes and any profits and losses on the
closure or revaluation of positions are included in capital reserves.

Derivative instruments are valued at fair value in the balance sheet. Derivative instruments may
be capital or revenue in nature and, accordingly, changes in their fair value are recognised in
revenue or capital in the income staterment as appropriate.

Income

Interest income arising from fixed income securities and cash is recognised in the income
statement using the effective interest method. Dividend income arises from equity investments
held and is recognised on the date investments are marked 'ex-dividend’. Deposit interest and
underwriting commission receivable are taken inte account on an accruals basis.

Expenses and Finance Costs
Expenses are recognised on an accruals basis and finance costs are recognised using the
effective interest method in the income statement.

The investment management fee and finance costs are allocated 70% to capital and 30% to
revenue. This is in accordance with the Board's expected long-term split of returns, in the form
of capital gains and income respectively, from the portfolio.

The performance fee is allocated wholly to capital as it arises from capital returns on the portiolio.

Expenses in connection with the previous year's change of manager and transaction costs are
recognised in capital in the income staternent. All other expenses are allocated to revenue in the
income statement.

Taxation

The liability to corporation 1ax is based on net revenue for the year, excluding non-taxable
dividends. The tax charge is allocated between the revenue and capital account on the marginal
basis whereby revenue expenses are matched first against taxable income in the revenue
account.

Deferred taxation is recognised in respect of ali timing differences that have originated but not
reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to
pay more tax of a Aght to pay less tax in the future have occurred. Timing differences are
differences between the Company’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial
statements. Deferred tanation assets are recognised where, in the opinion of the directors, it is
maore likely than not that these amounts will be realised in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

A deferred tax asset is only recognised in respect of surplus management expenses, losses on
ioan relationships and eligible unrelieved foreign tax to the extent that the Company is likely 10
have sufficient future taxable revenue to offset against these.

{h) Dividends Payable
Dividends are not recognised in the accounts unless there is an obligation 1o pay at the balance
sheet date. Proposed dividends are recognised in the year in which they are paid to shareholders.

2. income
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Income from listed investments
UK dividends 38,795 42,307
Scrip dividends 870 1,269
Dverseas dividends 5936 1,883
income from money market funds 7 1,416
UK uniranked investment income - interest 1,190 116
46,798 46,991
Other income
Depaosit interest 1 854
interest on VAT recovered on management fees (note 3) — 251
Underwriting commission 11 118
Sundry income 43 27
Total income 46,958 48,241
3. Investment Management Fees
2010 2009
REVENUE CAPITAL FOTAL REVENUE CAPITAL TOTAL
£000 £°000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
investment management fee 1,224 2,855 4,079 994 2,317 3,311
Performance fee — — — — 3,422 3,422
1,224 2,855 4,079 994 5.739 6,733

Details of the investment management agreement are disclosed on page 23 in the Report of the
Directors. At 31 March 2010 investment management fees of £387,000 (2009: £589,000) were
accrued, No performance fee is due for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: £3,422,000). At

31 March 2010 no performance fee was accrued (2009: £1,71 1,000) and the provision for the unpaid
2009 performance fee remains at £1,711,000.

An amount of £963,000 has been recognised in these accounts in respect of VAT recovered on
management fees paid to 3 previous manager, Aberdeen Asset Management {*Aberdeen’). The
recovered VAT has been credited £289,000 to revenue and £674,000 to capital, in the same
proportion as originally charged to the income statement, Additional amounts of VAT should be
received from Aberdeen, however, as the amounts and timings of receipts are unknown, these have
not been accrued in the finandial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2009 an amount of £1,969,000 was recognised in respect of VAT
recovered on management fees from another previous Manager, Fidelity Investments Internaticnal.
That amount was credited £591,000 to revenue and £1,378,000 to capital. Interest recovered thereon
of £251,000 was credited to revenue,
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4. Other Expenses

2010 2009
REVENUE CAPITAL TOTAL REVENUE CAPITAL TOTAL
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Other expenses 697 6 703 725 58 783
Other expenses include
the fcllowing:
Directors fees 171 —_ 171 171 — 171
Fees payable to the Company’s
auditor in relation to:
~ the audit of the financial
statements 27 — 21 23 — 23
- for other services 7 —_ 7 6 8 14

The Directors' fees authorised by the Articles of Association are £250,000 per annum. The Directors’
Remuneration Repart provides further information on Directors’ fees for the year.

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services relate to fees and expenses payable to the
auditor for their review in connection with the half-yearly financia! statements and the annual
certificate to the trustee of the debenture stocks, which are recognised in reverwe. The fees for the
year ended 31 March 2009 also included £8,000 for the auditor’s review in connection with the
change of manager, which was recognised in capital. Fees payable to the Company's auditor are
shown excluding VAT, which is included in other expenses.

5. Finance Costs

2010 2009
REVENUE CAPITAL TOTAL REVENUE CAPITAL TOTAL
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest payable on borrowings
repayable not by instalments:
Debenture stocks repayable
within 5 years 3,450 8,050 11,500 — — —
Debenture stocks repayable
after 5 years 2,325 5,425 7,750 5,775 13,475 19,250
Amortised debenture stock
discount and issue costs 75 177 252 75 176 251
5,850 13,652 19,502 5850 13651 19,501
6. Taxation
(a) Current tax charge
2010 2009
£:000 £:000

Overseas tax 809 134
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

{b)

(<

()

7.

Reconciliation of current tax charge

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Total return on ordinary activities before taxation 235,806 (251,240}
UK Corporation Tax rate of 28% (2009 28%]) 66,026 {70,347}
Effect of:
- non-taxable (gainsylosses on investments {59,460) 76,840
- non-taxable losses on foreign exchange movements 52 i
- non-taxable UK dwidends {11,106) (12,201}
- non-taxable overseas dividends {1,142) -
-~ expenses and finance costs in excess of taxable income for
the year carried forward 5.630 5,707
~ Overseas tax 809 134
Current tax charge for the year 809 134

Deferred tax

Due to the Company’s status as an investrent company, and its intention to continue meeting the
conditions required 1o obtain approval in the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided
deferred tax on any capital gains and losses arising on the revaluation or disposal of investments.

Factors that may affect future tax changes

The Company has surplus management expenses and losses on loan relationships of

£271,684,000 (2009; £247,572,000) and eligible unrelieved foreign taxation of £68,000 (2009:
£391,000) that are available 10 offset future taxable revenue. A deferred tax asset has not been
recognised in respect of these expenses since the Directors believe that there will be no taxable
profits in the future against which the deferred tax assets can be offset.

Return per Ordinary Share

The basic, capital and total returns per ordinary share are based on each return on ordinary shares
after tax and on 195,116,734 (2009; 195,657,784) ordinary shares, being the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year.

8. Dividends
2010 2009

pence £'000 pence £000
Dividends paid and recognised in the year:
Third interim paid in respect of previous year 4.75 9,268 4.75 9,441
Final paid in respect of previous year 6.15 12,000 5.65 11,085
First interim paid 475 9,268 4.7% 9,268
Second interim paid 4.75 9,268 475 9,268
Third interim paid 475 9,268 —_ —

25.15 49,072 19.90 39,062
Dividends on shares payable in respect of

the year:

First interim 475 9,268 4.75 9,268
Second interim 4,75 9,268 4.75 9,268
Third interim 4.75 9,268 4.75 9,268
Proposed final 6.35 12,390 6.15 12,000

20.60 40,194 20.40 39,804

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by Ordinary Shareholders at the AGM.
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Investments
Analysis of investments by listing status
2010 2009
£000 £:000
Investments listed on recognised stock exchange 1,016,723 830,905
Unlisted investments at Directors’ valuation 5,134 8,557

1,021,857 839,462

Analysis of investrments gains and losses

2010 2009

£000 £000

Opening book cost 978,406 1,101,597
Opening investment holding losses (138,944) (36,952)
Opening valuation 839,462 1,064,645

Movements in year:

Purchases at cost 202,667 866,951
Sales - proceeds . (232,628) {817,705)
- net realised gainsAlosses) on sales 1,725 (172,437)
Movement in investment holding gains/iosses) 210,631 {101,992}
Clesing valuation 1,021,857 839,462
Closing book cost 950,170 978,406
Closing investrment holding gains/{losses) 71,687 (138,944)
Closing valuation 1,021,857 839,462

There were no purchases of sales of unlisted investments during the year {2009: purchase of
£13,257,000).

Gains/(losses) on investments

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Realised gains/(losses) on sales 1,725 (172,437)
Movement in investment holding gains/losses) 210,631 (101,992}
Gains/(losses) on investments 212,356 (274,429)

Transaction costs
Transaction costs on purchases of £1,066,000 (2009; £3,533,000) and on sales of £328,000
(2009: £339,000} are included within gains and losses on investments.

Significant holdings
At 31 March 2010 the Company had holdings of 3% or more of the dass of issued share capital
in the following investrnents, all of which are incorporated in England and Wales:

Name of undertaking Class of capital % of class held
Barclays Bank Nuclear Power Notes 28 February 2019 4.4
Proximagen Neuroscience Ordinary shares 3.1
Raven Russia Preferenice shares 30




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued
10. Debtors
2010 2009
£000 £'000
Prepayments and accrued income 7,146 5,698
Tax recoverable 87 -_
7,233 5,698
11. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2010 2009
£:000 £'000
Amounts due to brokers — 15
Interest due on debenture stocks 2,836 2.836
Accruals 590 2,596
3,426 5,447
12. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2010 2009
£000 £000
Debenture Stock:
114% redeemable 30 june 2014 100,000 100,000
7%% redeemable 30 September 2022 100,000 100,000
200,000 200,000
Unamortised discount and issue expenses on debenture stocks (3,141} (3,393)
196,859 196,607

Both debentures are secured by a floating charge on the Company. The interest on the debentures is
payable in half-yearly installments. The interest on the 11%3% debenture is payable in June and
December, and the interest on the 7%% debenture is payable in March and September, each year.

The effect on the net asset value of deducting the debenture stocks at market value, rather than at
par, is disclosed in note 16.

13. Provisions

2010 2009

. £000 £000
Performance-related fee:

Opening provision 1,711 —

Charge in the year — 1,711

Closing provision 1,711 1,711

Details of the performance fee are given in the Report of the Directors.
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14. Share Capital

2010 2009
NUMBER £000 NUMBER £000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 25p each 316,099,929 79,025 316,099,929 79,025
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 25p each 195,116,734 48,779 195,116,734 48,779
15. Reserves

The capital redemption reserve maintains the equity share capital arising from the buy back and
cancellation of shares; it, and the share premium, are non-distributable.

The capital reserve includes the investment holding gains, being the difference between cost and
market value at the balance sheet date, totalling a gain of £71,687,000 (2009: loss of £138,944,000).
The capital reserve is non-distributable however, it can be used to fund share buy backs.

The revenue reserve is the only reserve that is distributable by way of dividend.

16. Net Asset Value ('NAV') per Ordinary Share

{a) NAV —debt at par .
The shareholders’ funds in the balance sheet are accounted for in accordance with accounting
standards, however, this does not reflect the rights of shareholders on a return of assets under
the Articles of Association. These rights are reflected in the net assets with debt at par and the
corresponding NAV per share. A reconciliation between the two sets of figures follows:

2010 2009

NAV SHAREMOLDERS® NAV SHAREHOLDERS'

PER SHARE FUNDS PER SHARE FUNDS

PENCE £000 PENCE £:000

Shareholders’ funds 424.02 827,325 328.73 641,400

Less: Unamortised discount and

expenses arising from debenture

issue T {1.61) {3,141) (1.74} {3,393)

NAV - debt at par a22.41 824,184 326.99 638,007

{(b) NAV -debt at market value
The market value of the debenture stocks is determined by reference to the daily closing price.
This is the Bloomberg closing price, subject to review against other data providers 1o ensurée
consistency between data providers and against the reference gilts.

The net asset value per share adjusted to include the debenture stocks at market value rather
than at par is as follows:

2010 2009

NAV SHAREHOLDERS' NAV SHAREMOLDERS'

PER SHARE FUNDS PER SHARE FUNDS

PENCE £7000 PENCE £1000

NAY - debt at par 422 91 824,184 326.99 638,007

Debt at par 102.50 200,000 102.50 200,000
Debt at market value

- 11%% Debenture Stock 2014 (64.65) (126,136) (69.73) (136,054)

- 7%% Debenture Stock 2022 {61.34) (119,690) (66.20) {129,170}

NAV — debt at market value 398.92 778,358 293.56 572,783

The number of ordinary shares in issue at the year end was 195,115,734 (2009: 195,116,734).




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

17. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
(@) Reconciliation of operating loss to operating cash flows

2010 2009

£°000 £'000
Tota! return before finance costs and taxation 255,308 {231,739)
Scrip dividends received as income {870) {(1,269)
Adjustment for (gains)losses on investments {212,356) 274,429
Adjustrment for exchange losses ) 187 4
(Increase)/decrease in debtors {1,535 3,620
{Decrease)increase in creditors and provisions (2,006) 3,544
Tax on overseas investment income (809) (134)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 37,919 48,455

(b}  Analysis of cash flow for headings netted in the cash flow statement

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Servicing of finance
Interest paid on debenture stocks (19,250) (19,250)
Net cash cutflow from servicing of finance (19,250) (19,250}
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of investments, including scrip dividends
received as income (201,812) {871,506}
Sale of investments 232,628 819,120
et cash inflow/(outflow) from capital expenditure and financial
investments 30,816 (52,386)
Management of liquid resources
Cash movernent on cash funds and short-term deposits — 52,601
Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources —_ 52,601
Financing
Shares bought back and cancelled —_ {15,793)
Net cash outflow from financing — (15,793}
(0  Analysis of changes in net debt
DEBENTURE
STOCK
31 MARCH CASH  EXCHANGE  NON-CASH 31 MARCH
2005 FLOW MOVEMENTS MOVEMENT 2010
oeo £:000 £000 £'000 £000
Cash 5 413 {(187) -— 23
Debentures (196,607) — — (252) (196,859
Net debt {196,602) 413 (87 ¢ (252)  (196,628)
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18. Risk Management and Financial Instruments

Financial instruments

The Company's financial instruments mainly comprise its investment portfolio (as shown on pages 10
and 11) and debentures as well as its cash, debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations
such as sales and purchases awaiting settlement and accrued income. The accounting policies in

note 1 include criteria for the recognition and the basis of measurement applied for financial
instrurnents. Note 1 also includes the basis on which income and expenses arising from financial
assets and liabilities are recognised and measured.

The principal risks that an investment company faces in its portfolio rmanagement activities are set out
below:

Market risk - arising from fluctuations in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk:

Currency risk - arising from fluctuations in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument because of changes in foreign exchange rates;

Interest rate risk - arising from fluctuations in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument because of changes in market interest rates; and

Other prite risk — arising from fluctuations in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument for reasons other than changes in foreign exchange rates or market interest rates,

Liquidity risk - arising from any difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

Credit risk - arising from financial loss for a company where the other party to a financial instrument
fails to discharge an obligation.

Risk Management Policies and Procedures
The Directors have delegated to the Manager the responsibility for the day-to-day investment activities
and management of gearing of the Company as more fully described in the Report of the Directors.

As an investment trust the Company invests in equities and other investrnents for the long-term so as
to meet its investment policy {incorporating the Company’s investment objective). In pursuing its
investment objective, the Company is exposed to a variety of risks that could result in either a
reduction in the Company's net assets or a reduction of the profits available for dividends, These
policies are summarised below and have remained substantially unchanged for the two years under
review.

Market Risk

The Company's Manager assesses the Company's exposure when making each investment decision, and
monitors the overall level of market risk for the whole of the investment portfolio on an ongoing basis.
The Board meets at least quarterly to assess risk and review investment performance, as disclosed in the
Board Responsibilities on page 29. The debentures provide structural gearing which is used to enhance
returns, however, this will also increase the Company's expasure to market risk and volatility.

Currency risk

The maijority of the Company’s assets and ali of its liabilities are denominated in sterling. Forward
currency contracts may be entered into for hedging purposes however, none were held during the
year or at the year end. All contracts are limited to currencies and amounts commensurate with the
asset exposure of those currencies.

The Company may invest up to 15% of the portfolio in securities listed on non-UK steck exchanges.
At the year end holdings of non-UK securities total £102.1 million (2009: £45.5 million) representing
10% (2009: 5.5%) of the portfolio.

If sterling had weakened by 3.9% for US doflar and 3.1% for Swiss frang during the year, the income
statement capital return and net assets of the Company would have increased by £3.9 million (2009
£6.1 million). Conversely, if sterling had strengthened by the same percentage for the currencies
mentioned above, the capital return and net assets of the Company would have decreased by the
same amount. The exchange rate variances of £3.9% for US dollar and %3.1% for Swiss francs (2009:
+13.5% and r/a respectively} have been determined based on market volatifity in the year, using the
standard deviation of sterling’s fluctuation to the applicable currency.
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interest rate risk

interest rate movements will affect the level of income receivable on cashr deposits and money market
funds, and the interest payable on variable rate borrowings. When the Company has cash balances,
they are held on variable rate bank accounts yielding rates of interest dependent on the base rate
determined by the Custodian, The Bank of New York Mellon.

The Company has an uncommitted bank overdraft facility which it uses for settlement purposes. This
facility has not been used during the year.

All of the Company's long term debt of £200 million of debenture stocks is fixed which expcses the
Company to changes in market value in the event that the debt is repaid before maturity. Details of
the debenture stock interest is shown in note 12, with details of its market value and the affect on net
asset value in note 16.

The Company can invest in fixed income securities although at the year end none were held (2009:
£21.2 million).

Interest rate exposure
At 31 March the exposure of financial assets and finandial liabilities to interest rate risk is shawn by
reference to:

- floating interest rates (giving <ash flow interest rate risk) — when the interest rate is due to be

re-set; and
- fixed interest rates (giving fair vaiue interest rate risk} - when the financia! instrument is due for
repayment.
. 2010 2009
BETWEEN MORE MORE
ONE AND THAN WITHIN THAN
WITHIN FIVE FIVE ONE FIVE
ONE YEAR YEARS YEARS TOTAL YEAR YEARS TOTAL
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Exposure to floating
interest rates:
Cash and money
market funds 23 — —_— FED 5 — 5

Exposure to fixed
interest rates.
investments at fair
value through profit

or loss -— — —_ — — 12,692 12,692
Debentures, excluding
unamortised discount
and issue expenses — {100,000) (100,000} (200,000} — (200,000} (200,000}

Total exposure to
interest rates 231 (100,000) {100,000 (199,769} 5 {187,308) (187,303

No fixed interest investments were held at the year end. The weighted average effective interest rate
on fixed interest investments held at 31 March 2009 was 8.5%.

Other price risk

Other price risks (i.e. changes in market prices other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk) may affect the value of the equity investments, but it is the business of the Manager 10
manage the portfolio to achieve the best return that he can.

Management of the other price risk -

The Directors manage the market price risks inherent in the investment portfolic by meeting regularly
to monitor on a formal basis the Manager's compliance with the Company's stated objectives and
policies and to review investment performance.
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18. Risk Management and Financial Instruments (continued)

The Company’'s portfolio is the result of the Manager's investment process and need not be highly
correlated with the Company’s benchmark or the market in which the Company invests, The value of
the portfolio will not move in line with the market but will move as a result of the performance of the
company shares within the portfolio.

If the value of the portfalio fell by 10% at the balance sheet date, the profit after tax for the year and
the net assets of the Company would decrease by £102 million (2009: £84 million). Conversely, if the
value of the portfelio rose by 10%, the profit after tax and the net assets of the Company would
increase by the £102 million (2009: £84 milfion).

Liquidity risk is minimised as the majority of the Company’s investments comprise a diversified
portfolio of readily realisable securities which ¢an be sold to meet funding commitments as necessary.
i addition, the Company has an overdraft facility which it can use to provide short-term funding
flexibility,

Credit risk encompasses the failure by counterparties to deliver securities which the Company has
paid for, of o pay for securities which the Company has delivered, and cash balances. Counterparty
risk is minimised by using only approved counterparties. The Company's ability to operate in the
short-term may be adversely affected if the Company’s custodian suffers insolvency or other financial
difficulties. The Board reviews the custodian’s annual controls report and the Manager's management
of the relationship with the custodian. Cash balances are limited to a maximum of £5 million with any
one depository, with only approved depositories being used, and a maximum deposit of £75 million
with AIM Short-Term Investments Company (Global Series) ple, a triple-A rated money market fund.

Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the balance sheet at their fair
value (investments), or the balance sheet amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value (amounts
due from brokers, dividends receivable, accrued income, amounts due to brokers, accruals and cash)
or at amortised cost {debentures). The book cost and fair value of the debentures, based on the
mid-rarket value at the balance sheet date, are as follows:

BOOK FAIR BOOK FAIR
VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
2010 2010 2009 2009
NUMBER £000 NUMBER £000
Debentures repayable between one and
five years:
114% Debenture Stock 2014 100,000 126,136 100,000 136,054
Debentures repayable in more than five years:
7%% Debenture Stock 2022 100,000 119,690 100,000 129,170
Discount on issue of debentures {3,140) — (3,393) —

196,859 245826 196607 265,224

incorporating the fair value of the debentures result in the reduction of the net asset value per
ordinary share to 398.92p (2009: 293.56p).

Fair Value of Hierarchy Disclosures .

All except one of the Company’s portfolio of investments are in the Level 1 category as defined in
FRS 29 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ which is applicable for reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2009, The three levels set out in FRS 29 follow.

Level 1 - fair value based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level Z - fair values based on valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices
within Level 1.

level 3 - fair values based on valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable
market data.
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Categorisation within the hierarchy is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement of each relevant assetliability.

The valuation techniques used by the Company are explained in the accounting policies note. All
except one of the Company's investments are Level 1 with one investment in Level 2. There were no
transfers between the levels during the year.

The sole investment in Level 2 comprised the Company's holding of Barclays Bank — Nuclear Power
Notes (the ‘Notes’), which was valued at £5.1 million (2009: £8.6 million). There were no stock
movements in Level 2 during the year other than the revaluation of these Notes, which has been
recognised in investment holding gains in these financial staternents within the income statement.

Maturity Analysis of Contractual Liability Cash Flows

The financial liabilities of the Company are shown in notes 11 and 12. The major hiabilities are the two
debenture stocks with £100 million payable on 30 June 2014, the other £100 million payable on

30 September 2022 and interest payments totalling £11.5 million and £7.75 million per annum
respectively. Other liabilities comprise amounts due to brokers and accruals, All are paid under
contractual terms, For amaunts due 1o brokers, this is usually the purchase date of the investment plus
three business days. For accruals, this is normally within 30 business days of invoice or, in the case of
management fees, in accordance with the management agreement.

Capital Management

The Company does not have any externally imposed capital requirements. The Company's capital is
disclosed in the balance sheet and is managed on 2 basis consistent with its investment objective and
poiicies, as disclosed in the Report of the Directors’ on page 15. The principal risks and their
management are discussed above.

19. Contingencies, Guarantees and Financial Commitments

The Board expects the Company to receive interest on refunds of VAT on management fees for earlier
periods from Aberdeen Asset Managemenit {who acquired Edinburgh Fund Managers). However, as
the amounts involved and the timing of receipts are uncertain, no provision has been made in these
accounts.

There were no other contingencies, guarantees or financial commitments of the Company at the year
end {2009: £nil).

20. Related Party Transactions

Invesco Asset Management Limited (1AML), a wholly owned subsidiary of Invesco Lirmited, is
Manager, Company Secretary and Administrator to the Company. Details of management fees payable
to tAML, together with details of Directors’ interests, are disclosed in the Report of the Directors.
There are no other related party transactions.
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any doubt as to what action to take, you should consult your stockbroker, solicitor,

accountant or other appropriate independent professional adviser authorised under the

Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your

shares jn The Edinburgh investment Trust plc, please forward this document and the

accompanying Form of Proxy to the person through whom the sale or transfer was effected,

for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the one hundred and twenty first Annual General Meeting of The
Edinburgh Investment Trust pk will be held at The Weston Link, National Galleries of Scotland, Princes
Street, Edinburgh on Friday, 23 luly 2010 at 10.30 am, for the following purposes:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive the Report of the Directors and Auditors and the Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 March 2010;

To declare a final dividend on the ordinary shares;

To re-elect Mr Scott Dobbie as a Director of the Company;

To re-elect Nicola Ralston as a Director of the Company;

To re-elect Sir Nigel Wicks as a Director of the Company;

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2010;
To re-appeint KPMG Audit Plc as Auditors of the Company;

To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditors.

PN e W

Special Business

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions of which 9 will be proposed as an
Ordinary Resolution and 10, 11 and 12 as Special Resolutions:

9. THAL

in substitution for any existing authority under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the
'Act’} the Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised in accordance with section 551
of the Act as amended from time 1o time prior to the date of the passing of this resolution, to
exercise all powers of the Company to allot shares and grant rights to subscribe for, or convert
any securities into, shares up to an aggregate nominal amount {within the meaning of

sections 551(3) and (6} of the Act) of £4,877,918, this being 10% of the Company's issued
ordinary share capital as at 28 May 2010, such authority to expire at the conclusion of the next
AGM of the Company or the date fifteen months after the passing of this resolution, whichever '
is the earlier, but so that this authority shall allow the Company to make offers or agreements
befare the expiry of this authority which would or might require shares to be allotted, or rights
to be granted, after such expiry as if the authority conferred by this resclution had not expired.

10. THAT:

subject to the passing of resolution number 9 and in substitution for any existing authority under
sections 570 and 573 of the Act but without prejudice to the exercise of any such authority prior
to the date of this resolution, the Directors be and are hereby empowered, in accordance with
sections 570 and 573 of the Act as amended from time to time prior to the date of the passing
of this resolution to allot equity securities (within the meaning of section 560(1), (2) and (3) of the
Act} for cash, either pursuant to the authority given by resolution 9 set out above or (if such
allotment constitutes the sale of relevant shares which, immediately before the sale, were held by
the Company as treasury shares) otherwise, as if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment, provided that this power shall be limited:

{a) 1o the allotment of equity securities in connection with a rights issue in favour of all
holders of a class of equity securities where the equity secunties attributable respectively 10
the interests of all holders of securities of such class are either proportionate (3s nearly as
may be) to the respective numbers of relevant equity securities hetd by them or are
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otherwise aliotted in accordance with the rights attaching to such equity securities (subject
in either case 10 such exdusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deern
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements of legal or practical prablems
under the laws of, or the requirements of, any reqgulatory body or any stock exchange in
any territory or otherwise); and

{b) 1o the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to a rights issue) of equity securities up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £4,877 918, this being 10% of the Company’s issued
ordinary share capital as at 28 May 2010

and this power shall expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or the date
fifteen months after the passing of this resolution, whichever is the earlier, but so that this
power shall allow the Company to make offers or agreements before the expiry of this power
which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry as if the power
conterred by this resolution had not expired; and so that words and expressions defined in or for
the purposes of Part 17 of the Act shall bear the same meanings in this resolution.

THAT:

the Company be generally and subject as hereinafter appears unconditionally authorised in
accordance with section 701 of the Act to make market purchases {within the meaning of
section 163 of the Act} of the issued ordinary shares of 25p each in the capital of the Company
(‘Shares’)

PROVIDED ALWAYS THAT:

{a) the maximum number of Shares hereby authorised to be purchased shall be 29,247,998
ordinary shares (being 14.99% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at
28 May 2010);

{t)  the minimum price which may be paid for a Share shall be 25p;

{0 the maximum price which may be paid for a Share shall be an amount equal to 105% of
the average of the middle market quotations for a Share taken from and calculated by
reference 1o the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the day on which the Share is purchased;

(d) any purchase of Shares will be made in the market for cash at prices below the prevailing
net asset value per Share (as determined by the Directors);

(¢) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Compary, or on 20 January 2012 if earlier, unless the authority is renewed
at any other general meeting prior to such time; and

)  the Company may make a contract to purchase Shares under the authority hereby
conferred prior to the expiry of such authority which will or may be executed wholly or
partly after the expiration of such authority and may make a purchase of Shares pursuant
to any such contract.

THAT:

the period of notice required for general meetings of the Company {other than AGMs) shall be
not less than 14 days.

Explanatory Notes to Resolution 12
Notice of period for general meetings

This resolution is required as the implementation of the EU Shareholder Rights Directive has
increased the notice period for general meetings of companies 1o 21 days unless certain
conditions are met in which case it may be 14 days. To ensure that the Company's general
meetings {other than AGMSs) may be held on 14 days’ notice, a shareholder resolution reducing
the period of notice to not less than 14 days must have been passed at the immediately
preceding AGM.
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For an explanation of all Special Business please refer to the Report of the Directors on page 22.

Dated this 28th May 2010
By order of the Board

Invesco Asset Management Limited
Secretary

Following the Annual General Meeling, shareholders will have the opportunity to meet the Board and
representatives from the Manager informally. Refreshments will be served.

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint one ar maore proxies to attend,
speak and vote in his stead. Where more than one proxy is appointed, each proxy must be appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares. A proxy need not be a member of the Company
In order to be valid an appaintment of proxy must be returned in hard copy form by post, by courier ar by
hand to the Company’s Registrars, Equiniti Limited, The Edinburgh Investment Trust ple, Equiniti, Aspect
House, Spencer Road, Lancing, BN99 6LB or, in the case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST
electronic proxy appointrnent service in accordance with the procedures set out below and in each case, to
be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

2. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by utiising the CREST electronic proxy appointment
service may do so by utilising the procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST Personal Members or
other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service
provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor of voting service provider(s) who will be able to take the
appropriate action on their beha!f. In order for a proxy appointment made by means of CREST to be valid,
the appropriate CREST message (2 ‘CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance
with Euroctear UK & Ireiand Limited's specifications and must contain the information required for such
instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of whether it relates to the
appointment of a proxy or to an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must,
ir order 1o be vahd, be transmitted 50 as to be received by the issuer's agent (ID RA19) by the latest time(s)
for receipt of proxy appoiniments specified in this document. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be
taken 10 be the time {as determined by the time stamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications
Host) from which the issuer’s agent is able 1o retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner
prescribed by CREST. After this time any changes of instructions to proxies through CREST should be
communicated to the appointee through other means, The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction in the drcumstances set out in Regulation 35{5)a) of the Uncentificated Securities Regulations
2001. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s} should note
that Euroclear UK & lrefand Lirmited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particutar
messages. Normal system timings and limitations will therefore apply in retation to the input of CREST Proxy
instructions, It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take or, if the CREST member is a
CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed 8 voting service provider(s), 1o procure that
his CREST sponsar or voting service provider(s) take(s), such action as shall be necessary 10 ensure that a
message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST
members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular,
to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.
The CREST Manual can be reviewed at www.euroctear.com/CREST.

3. A form of appeintment of proxy is enclosed. Appointment of a proxy (whether by completion of a form of
appointment of proxy, or other instrument appointing a proxy or any CREST Praxy Instruction) does not
prevent a member from attending and voting at this meeting.

Ta be effective, the form of appointment of proxy, duly completed and executed, together with any power
of attorney or other authority under which it is signed (or a notarially cenified copy thereof) must be
lodged at the office of the Company's Regisirars, Equiniti Limited, The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc,
Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing BN9S 6LB no fater than 10.30 am on 21 July 2010,

4. A person entered on the Register of Members at close of business on 21 July 2010 {a ‘member’) is entitled
to attend and vote at the Meeting pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Requlations
2001. Any changes to the Register of Members after such time and date shall be disregarded in determining
the rights of any person to attend and/or vote a1 the Meeting. If the Meeting is adjourned, entittement to
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13,

attend and vote at the adjourned meeting, and the number of votes which may be cast thereat, will be
determined by reference to the Company’s register of members 48 hours before the time fixed for the
adjourned meeting.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit, Management Engagement and Nominations Committees and the
Letters of Appointment for Directors will be available for inspection at the Company’s AGM.

A copy of the Articles of Association is avaitable for inspection at the Registered Office ol the Company
during normal business hours on any business day {excuding public holidays} until the close ¢f the Annual
General Meeting and will also be available at the Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior and
during the meeting.

Any person to whom this Notice is sent who is a person nominated under section 146 ot the Companies Act
2006 to enjoy information rights (3 "Nominated Person’) may have a right, under an agreement between
himvher and the shareholder by whom he/she was nominated, to be appainted (or to have someone efse
appointed) as a proxy for the meeting. Iif a Nominated Person has no such proxy appeintment right or does
not wish 10 exercise it, he/she may have a right, under such an agreement, to give instruciions to the
shareholder as to the exercise of voting rights.

The statement of the above rights of the shareholders in refation to the appointment of proxies does not
apply to Nominated Persons. Those rights can onty be exercised by shareholders of the Company.

Any corporation which is a member can appoint one or mare corporate representatives who may exercise on
its behalf all of its powers as a member provided that they do not do so in refation to the same shares.

Any member attending the AGM has the right to ask questions. The Company must cause to be answered
any such question relating to the business being dealt with at the AGM but no such answer need be given
if: {2) to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the AGM or involve the disclosure of
confidentiat information; (b) the answer has already been given on a website in the form of an answer to a
guestion; or (€) it is undesirable in the interests of the Company of the good order of the AGM that the
question be answered.-

You may not use any electronic address {within the meaning of section 333(4) of the Companies Act 2006)
provided in this Notice (or in any related documents including the proxy form) to communicate with the
Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated,

As at 28 May 2010 (being the fast practicable day prior to the publication of this Notice) the Company's
issued share capital consists of 195,116,734 ordinary shares of 25p each carrying one vote each. Therefore,
the total voting rights in the Company as at that date are 195,116,734

A copy of this notice, and other information required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be
found at www.invescoperpetual. co.ukfinvestmenttrusts.

shareholders should note that it is possible that, pursuant 10 requests made by members of the Company
under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 {the 2006 Act’), the Company may be required to publish on
a websile a statement setting out any matter relating to: {i) the audit of the Company's accounts (including
the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit) that are 1o be laid before the Annual General Meeting for
the financial year beginning on 1 April 2009; or (i) any circumstance connected with an auditor of the
Company appointed for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2009 ceasing 10 hold office since the
previous meeting at which the annual financiat report was laid in accordance with section 437 of the
Companies Act 2006 (in each case) that the members propose to raise at the relevant Annual General
Meeting.

The Company may not require the members requesting any such website publication to pay its expenses in
complying with sections 527 or 528 of the 2006 Act. Where the Company is required to place a statement
an 3 website under section 527 of the 2006 Act, it must forward the statement to the Company's auditor
not later than the time when it makes the statement available on the website. The business which may be
dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any statement that the Company has been required
under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website.
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Benchmark

A market index, which averages the performance of companies in any sector, giving a good indication
of any rises or falls in the market.

Discount/(Premium)

The amount by which the mid-market price per share of an investment trust is lower/{higher) than the
net asset value per share. The discount/premium is normally expressed as a percentage of the net
asset value of the share.

Dividend Yield
The annual dividend expressed as a percentage of the current share price.

Gearing

The term defines the effect of borrowings which increase the return on investments when the value of
the Company’s investrents is rising but reduce the return when values are declining. A gearing level
of 100 or 0% indicates there is no gearing.

Actual Gearing reflects the scale of borrowings in use by the Company at any particular time.
It is calculated by dividing the aggregate of borrowings less cash and investments in money
market funds by shareholders’ funds.

Potential Gearing reflects the utilisation of the maximum of all arranged borrowings. it is
calculated by dividing the aggregate of borrowings by shareholders’ funds.

Net Asset Value ("NAV')

Also described as shareholders’ funds, the net asset value is the value of total assets less liabilities,
Liabilities include current and long-term liabilities, The net asset valug per share is calculated by
dividing the net asset value by the number of ordinary shares in issue.

Return
The return generated in the period from the investments.

Capital Return reflects the return on capital, excluding any incorne returns,

Total Return reflects the aggregate of capital and income returns in the period. The NAV total
return reflects capital changes in the NAV and dividends paid in the period.

Total Expense Ratio

The total expenses including those charged to capital, but excluding interest incurred by the Company
and the effect of VAT refunds on management fees, expressed as a percentage of average net assets
(shareholders’ funds).
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The Manager of The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc is Invesco Asset
Management Limited.

Invesco Asset Management Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Invesco Limited and is authorised and regulated by the Financial
Services Authority.

invesco Perpetual is a business name of Invesco Asset Management
Limited.

Invesco Perpetual is one of the largest independent global
investment management firms, with funds under management in
excess of $456.9 billion.*

We aim to provide the highest returns available from markets,
through active management, but in a controlled manner,
conscious of the risks involved and within our clients’ objectives.

+ Funds under Management as at 30 April 2010,
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investing for Income, Income Growth and Capital Growth {from equities, fixed interest

securities or property)

City Merchants High Yield Trust pk

Airms 10 generate a high level of income from a variety of fixed
income instruments combined with a degree of securty. The
Company is geared by bank debt.

Invesco Income Growth Trust plc

Aims to provide shareholders with a long-term growth in capital
and real, king-teem growth in dividends from an above-average
yielding portfolio comprising mainly UK equities and equity-related
secunities. Seeks 10 achieve a total return in excess of the FTSE All-
Share tndex. The Company is geared by bank debt,

Invesco Leveraged High Yield Fund Limited

A Jersey-incorporated closed-ended Company that aims o provide
a high level of income, paid gross to UK investors, whilst seeking to
maximise 1otal return through investng, primarily in a diversified
portfolio of high-yelding corparate and government bonds. The
Company seeks to balance the attraction of high-yield securities
with the need for protecuon of capial and to manage yolatity Pre
Company 15 highly geared.

Invesco Perpetual Recovery Trust 2009 pic

A spht-capital investment trust with ordinary income shares, zero
dividend preference shares and units (a combination of the two).
Aims tg meet the capital entitiements of the zero dividend
preference shares and to maximise the capital and in¢ome returns
of the ordinary income shaces by investing primarily in equities but
also debt securities which are considered to offer recovery
prospects. Returns to ordinary income shareholders are geared by
the prior ¢harge of the zero shares. The Company has an ninial
life projected to end in 2011.

Invesco Perpetual Select Trust pk - Managed Liquidity
Share Portfolio

Airms 10 generate a high level of incame from a variety of fired
income instruments combined with a high degree of security.

Investing in Smalter Companies

Invesco English and International Trust plc

wvests mainly in UK-guoted and unguoted smaller companies, AIM
stocks and in US smaller companies. [ pursues a relatvely risk-
averse stock selection strategy holding a well-diversified portfalip
and seeks 10 invest in companies offering parucular value. The
Companty has adopted a flexibfe gearing policy and a quarterly
redemption/creation mechanism,

Investing Internationally

Invesco Asia Trust pk

Aims to provide long-termn capHal growth by investing in a diversified
portielio of Asian and Ausiralasian securities. The Company 8ims 1o
achieve growth in its net asset value in excess of the Morgan Stankey
Capital International {All Country} Far East Free (ex Japan) index,
rmeasured in Stering, The Company is geared Dy bank debt.
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Investing for Absolute Returns

invesco Perpetual Select Trust plc - Hedge Fund Share
Portfolio

Aims to achieve absolute return of 3-month sterding DBOR plus
B6% per annuim over 3 rolling S-year period, coupled with low
volatility. Capital preservation & a priofity.

Investing in Multiple Asset Classes

Invesco Perpetual Select Trust plc
* UK Equity Share Portfolio

« Global Equity Share Portiolio

» Managed Liquidity Share Portiolio

* Hedge Fund Share Porvicko

Invesco Perpetual AiM VCT plc
The Compary was launched in August 2004. fis objettive & {0
Drovide a tax-free dividend return 10 shareholders invested at

Invesco Perpetual Select Trust pk — UK Equity Share
Portfolio

Portfalio Aims 10 generate long-term capital and income growth
with real growth in dividends from investment, primarily in the UK
equity market. The portfolic is geared by bank debt.

Invesco Property tncome Trust Limited

The Company is a closed-ended investment compaay with hmited
liabiity incorporated in Jersey. The opjective is to provide ord:nary
shareholders with an atiractive level of income together with the
prospect of income and capital growth trom investing in
commercial properties in the UK and Continental Ewrope, The
Company 15 geared by bank debt.

Keystone Investment Trust ple

Aims 19 provige shareholders with long-teem growth of capital
mainly from UK investrents, The Company is geared by way of
debeniure stocks.

Perpetual Income and Growth Investment Trust plc

Aims to generate capital growth with a higher than average
income from investment, primarily in the UK equity market, i is
intended that the Company will pravide shareholders with real
dividend growth cver the medium-term by investing manly in
above-average yield equities. However, investments are also made
in companies with lower iritial yields which are considered to have
good petentiat for income growth. The Company 15 geared by 3
debenture stock and bank debt,

The Edinburgh Investiment Trust plc

Invests in UK securities with long term objective of achieving:

1. an increase in the Net Asset Valup per share by more than the
growth in the FTSE Ail-Share Index; and

1. growah in dividends per share by more than the sate of UK
inflation.

The portfolio is geared by way of two debenture stocks.

Invesco Perpetual UK Smaller Companies tnvestment
Trust ple

Aims to achieve long-term total returns for the Company's
shareholders fram investment in a broad cross-section of smafl 10
medium size UK-quoted comparees. The Company may gear by
bank debt.

Invesco Perpetual Sefect Trust pk - Global Equity Share
Portfolio

Aims to produce long-term capital grawth from a sensibly
diversified portfolio of international equities (including the UK).
The portfolic comprises the ‘best ideas’ of @ number of Invesco
Perpetual’s investment managers. The partfolio is geared by bank
debt.

A choice of asset classes wathin pne investment trust with the
freedom 1o switch between them, twice 2 year, free from capital
gains 1ax liability.

launch primarily through the realisation ¢of capital gains from a
porttolio of investments v AlM Qualitying Compamves while
mamiaining the capital vatue of shares

Please contact our Investor Services Team on D800 085 8677 if you wauld ke more information about the investment trusts or other
speciglist funds listed above. Further delails are also avalable on the followang website: www.invescoperpetual co. uk/investmenttrusts
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